8.

9

HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE-POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052

FEBRUARY 2026 AGENDA PACKET CONTENTS

. Agenda for the February 25, 2026, Regular Commission Meeting

Draft Minutes of the January 28, 2025, Regular Commission Meeting

Memo from the GM on the Coastal Community Development Corporation
Presentation

Coastal Community Development Corporation Progress Report
FY’26 2" Quarter Financial Report
Financial Ratio Benchmark Analysis

Letter from the GM to the Commission on the MOU for Participation in the S.C.
Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity Program

MOU for Participation in the S.C. Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity Program

GM Monthly Report

10. BCPSD Regional Infrastructure Connectivity Study Presentation

11. Signed Letter in Support of H.3768

12. Water Quality Report






HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE - POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052
www.hhpsd.com

AGENDA
Hilton Head Public Service District Commission
1 p.m.
February 25, 2026
PSD Community Room
21 Oak Park Drive, Hilton Head Island, SC 29926
[.  Call to Order & Freedom of Information Act Announcement
II.  Pledge of Allegiance
III.  Roll Call of Commissioners
IV.  Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
V. Adoption of Draft Minutes of January 28, 2025, Regular Meeting
VI.  Coastal Community Development Corporation Presentation
VII.  FY 26 2™ Quarter Financial Report
VIII.  Financial Ratio Benchmark Analysis
IX.  S.C. Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity Program MOA (Action)
X.  General Manager’s Monthly Report

XI.  Executive Session;

A. Under S.C. Code 30-4-70 (a) (2) (“Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual

arrangements...”)
i. Purchased Water Agreement
ii. Advanced Metering Infrastructure

XII.  Possible Action by Commission Concerning Matters Discussed in Executive Session

XII.  Adjournment

*Public Comment will be taken before Commission vote on any action item.



Draft Minutes




I1.

I11.

Iv.

HILTON HEAD NO.1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT

21 OAK PARK DRIVE — POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052

MINUTES
COMMISSION MEETING
JANUARY 28, 2026
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Frank Turano at 1:00 p.m.

Those in attendance were:

Mr. Jerry Cutrer Vice Chair

Mr. Stuart Bell Treasurer

Mrs. Patti Soltys Secretary (via Zoom)
Mr. Andy Paterno Commissioner

Mr. Ibrahim Abdul-Malik Commissioner

Mr. Michael Marks Commissioner

Present by request:

Mr. Pete Nardi General Manager

Mr. Bill Davis Operations Manager

Ms. Amy Graybill Finance Manager

Mrs. Connie Whitehead Commission Recording Secretary
Absent:

Mzr. Frank Turano Chair

Visitors

None

Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Michael Marks.
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

None



VIIL

Adoption of Draft Minutes of December 19, 2025, Commission Meeting

Key Discussion Points

e In Section IX, Adoption of Commission Officers, the action item was reworded to
state, “Mr. Marks moved to elect the 2025 Commission Officers to serve in the
same capacity for 2026...”

Action
e Mr. Abdul-Malik moved to adopt the minutes of the December 19, 2025, as
amended. Mr. Bell seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Approval and Adoption of Series Resolution Authorizing the Water and Sewer
Revenue Bond, Series 2026 (Front-foot Assessment) and Approval of Lender and
Terms

Key Discussion Points

e Ms. Graybill gave an overview of the Series Resolution Authorizing the Water
and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2026.

e Staff recommends the Commission adopt the resolution prepared by the District’s
bond counsel providing for the issuance and sale of a waterworks and sewer
system improvement revenue bond of Hilton Head Public Service District in the
principal amount of not exceeding $750,000, and other matters relating thereto.

e Staff recommends that the Commission authorize staff to formally accept the 10-
year term (Option 1) from Huntington Bank.

Action

e Mr. Bell moved to adopt the resolution prepared by the District’s bond counsel
providing for the issuance and sale of a waterworks and sewer system
improvement revenue bond of Hilton Head Public Service District in the principal
amount of not exceeding $750,000. Mr. Marks seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

e Mr. Bell moved to accept the 10-year term proposed by Huntington Bank. Mr.
Abdul-Malik seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

911 Center Lease Renewal

Key Discussion Points

e The lease between the Town of Hilton Head and Hilton Head PSD for the 911
dispatch center expires this summer. The Town has approached the PSD with an
interest in going month-to-month.

e The Board is in favor of extending the lease but feels a month-to-month
arrangement does not allow sufficient notice of lease termination.




VIIL

IX.

XII.

Action
e Mr. Paterno moved to authorize the general manager to negotiate a lease
extension with the Town based on Board discussions. Mrs. Soltys seconded.
The motion passed unanimously.

PSD Purchasing Policy Review
Key Discussion Points

e Staff gave an overview of the current PSD Purchasing Policy.
e Staff recommends no changes at this time.

FY’26 2"? Quarter Management Report

Key Discussion Points

e Mr. Nardi presented the FY’26 2" Quarter Management Report. A copy is
included in the agenda packet.

e Staff will prepare a letter for the Chairman’s signature to be sent to the legislative
delegation emphasizing the benefits of the Utility Relocation Act extension and
urging them to work to that end.

General Manager’s Monthly Report

Key Discussion Points
e Mr. Nardi presented the General Manager’s Monthly Report. A copy is included
in the agenda packet.

Executive Session to Discuss Contractual Matters Related to Easement
Valuation/Advanced Metering Infrastructure

Action

e Mr. Abdul-Malik voted to enter into executive session for the purpose of
discussing contractual matters related to easement valuation and advanced
metering infrastructure. Mrs. Soltys seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

e Executive Session began at 2:18 p.m.

Reconvene Regular Session

Action

e Regular Session reconvened at 2:53

e Mr. Abdul-Malik moved that the Board adopt the Memoradum of Understanding
discussed in Executive Session. Mr. Marks seconded. The motion passed 5-0.
Mrs. Soltys was not preset for the vote.



XIII. Adjournment

Action
e Mr. Bell moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Marks seconded. The motion passed
unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 2:54 a.m.



' - Coastal Community
' ‘Development Corporation




HiltonHead

Stz
-l
(843) 681-5525
Hhpsd.com
To: All Commissioners
From: Pete Nardi, General Manager
Re: Coastal Community Development Corporation Presentation

February 18, 2026
Dear Commissioners:

Alan Wolf and David Wetmore from the Coastal Community Development Corporation Board of Directors will join us at
our February Commission meeting to discuss the CCDC'’s efforts and potential PSD partnership.

Staff has prior met with Alan and David and will have information to share with the Commission on partnership
potential.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.

Best regards,

QK

Pete Nardi

General Manager
Hilton Head PSD
(843) 305-0638
pnardi@hhpsd.com




communit
, development
corporation

coastal

Bluffton

]

s
=
O

O
x
)
%)
n

L

©

—

ion

ity Development Corporat

Coastal Commun

1000 Main Street
Suite 100-B

.org

SC

fo@ccdc-

il: in

Ema
Webs

ccdc-sc.org

Www

te:

, SC 29926

HHI

843-715-4209

Tel



Mission

The Coastal Community Development Corporation (CCDC) seeks to increase the availability
of homes for our local and regional workforce by preserving existing housing, redeveloping
existing property and developing new property to meet the demand of our region while

serving working residents.

Service Area

Beaufort & Jasper County

Review To Date

Acquisition Highlights
The CCDC has acquired 40 total housing units in Beaufort County since our inception in
January 2023. Each of these units will be preserved for workers in our community at various

area median income (AMI) levels for 99 years with affordability secured by deed restrictions.

Hilton Head Island:

- 18 Units Purchased
o 3 each 2 Bedrooms @ 50% AMI
o 9each 2 Bedrooms @ 80% AMI
o 1each 1 Bedroom @ 100% AMI
o 4 each 2 Bedrooms @ 100% AMI
o 1each 2 Bedrooms @ 120% AMI

Bluffton Area:

- 23 Units Purchased
o 9each 1 Bedroom @ 80% AMI
o 3 each 2 Bedrooms @ 80% AMI
o 5 each 2 Bedrooms @ 100% AMI
o 3 each 3 Bedrooms @ 80% AMI
o 3 each 3 Bedrooms @ 100% AMI



Financial Highlights

2024 resulted in significant growth in support and development across our community and
fueled our ability to acquire and preserve 40 units of workforce housing. The CCDC set out to
engage private, public, non-profit and community partners in our efforts and each of these

stakeholders has played an integral part in our growth to date.

Hilton Head Island:

- Development & Fundraising

o $1,000,000 in donations for purchases
$250,000 from Long Cove Club Community
$575,000 from individual donors on Hilton Head Island
$605,000 in Altruistic Capital from Long Cove Club Community
$600,000 grant from Town of Hilton Head Island - ATAX Funds
$643,000 in Bank Mortgages from Coastal States Bank
$1.5M in Private Mortgages

O © 0 0 O 0

Bluffton Area:

Development & Fundraising
o $1,000,000 donation for purchases from Novant Health
o $1,000,000 in Altruistic Capital from Community Foundation of the Lowcountry
o $600,000 grant from Beaufort County via Beaufort Jasper Housing Trust
o $1.25M in Bank Mortgages from South States Bank
o $1.5M in Private Mortgages

Strategic Highlights

The CCDC board added two new'members in 2024, Brian Neumann and Collins Richardson.
Neumann, of Northpointe Mortgage, has over 20 years of finance experience in the mortgage
banking industry. Richardson of the Richardson Group has over 10 years of experience in

finance and project management in the multi-family and single-family residential development

sector.

Our strategy for increasing the availability of workforce housing represents a phased
approach in which the first step involves the scattered site acquisition of properties available
in our market. The second phase will focus on the redevelopment of existing housing, while

the final step will result in the development of new workforce housing projects.



The CCDC is actively working with developers on multiple projects across Beaufort and
Jasper counties which encompasses both of these phases. We are partnering with
experienced, multi-family developers who have a track record of success in the affordable

housing sector and view our organization as the ideal local, non-profit partner in the upcoming

developments.

While we will continue to raise funds for our initial work of scattered site acquisitions, we are
excited to see progress in the development phases; prospects which will substantially

increase the number of workforce housing units that we can bring to the market in the coming

years.
Operating Highlights

Under the leadership of Program Manager Carletha Frazier, the CCDC actively manages half
of the units we own, while the remaining units are overseen by local property management
companies at or below current market rates. Their expertise and established systems enable
the CCDC to maintain a lean team while ensuring our tenants receive high-quality property
management. Our Program Manager is the only paid employee of CCDC and our board of

directors receives no compensation for their work.

The CCDC accepts applications from prospective tenants and qualifies them based on
household income, employment with local businesses, and eligibility to work in the United
States. We have successfully placed workers in medical services, hospitality, service trades,
and education into the units we’ve acquired and rented. In many cases, these workers can
now live closer to their jobs, reducing long commutes or making relocation to our region

possible through affordable workforce housing.

Looking Ahead

In our first year, CCDC garnered support from a diverse group of community members.
Looking ahead, we aim to broaden our support network and explore new opportunities to

expand the availability of workforce housing.



FROM THE BOARD

The CCDC has made significant strides in expanding workforce housing in the Lowcountry.
While we are not the only organization tackling this challenge, our first-year results surpass
any similar efforts in Beaufort County over the past two decades. We are deeply grateful for
the individuals in our community who have stepped up to support our mission—both financially
and through advocacy—helping to improve the quality of life for local residents.

The CCDC approach presents a vital solution to our region’s housing challenges, offering key

advantages such as:

o Immediate Impact: Unlike new development, CCDC can quickly preserve existing
workforce housing, providing immediate relief.

o Smart Growth Management: Acquiring existing homes aligns with the Lowcountry’s
growth management priorities.

o Short-Term Rental Mitigation: Our strategy helps counteract the effects of the
expanding short-term rental market in the region.

« Path to Homeownership: Through our phantom equity program, tenants can save for a
home down payment. Combined with controlled rental pricing, this initiative supports
those who exceed income limits for restricted rentals and aspire to own a home in our
community.

o 99-Year Affordability Protection: CCDC properties will have covenants tied to Area
Median Income (AMI) for 99 years, ensuring long-term affordability by capping resale
values in line with AMI growth.

« Housing for All Workers: Our approach provides housing opportunities for workers
across industries, including civil service, healthcare, education, hospitality, and skilled
trades—allowing them to live where they work.

This strategy ensures sustainable, affordable housing solutions that support both workforce

stability and regional growth.




2025 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Kim Likins

Lisa Sulka

Tony Alfieri

Ken Campbell

David Wetmore

Geoff Block

Alan Wolf

Brian Neumann

Collins Richardson

[ J [ ] o [ [ ] [ J [ ] [



20

] g
o e B edly ¢

wmm“n—""% F‘)Uﬂd‘%c-)f) O
Ha LC)LQCOUn{__rU '

2025 Bnngel PQOO("/\

Coastal Community

Development

Corporation

In just two years, the Coastal Community

Development Corporation (CCDC) has achieved
- what many once thought impossible: creating

lasting, measurable progress in improving the
southern Lowcountry’s workforce housing crisis.
The nonprofit has purchased 41 homes and
apartment units (for the purpose of renting) in
Hilton Head Island and Bluffton and placed a
99-year covenant on the property that restricts
the rent to a percentage of the Area Median
Income (AMI). The covenant also prevents
properties from being sold on the open market,
which ensures long-term affordable housing
rentals for local workers.

Behind this remarkable progress lies a shared
commitment from community leaders,
businesses, residents, and the Community
Foundation of the Lowcountry (CFL), whose
early belief and investment made

CCDC's rapid success possible.

RESULTS:

“CFL has been

# | coastal |
: community
C development
corporation

absolutely instrumental
during every step,

from conception to
implementation to
startup to future growth
planning.”

Alan Wolf, CCDC Chairman of the Board

41 CCDC homes
2.3 in Bluffton
18 on Hilton Head



"A CATALYST FOR ACTION

The idea for CCDC took root in the wake of the
Chimney Cove situation in 2022, in which 300
residents of Hilton Head's affordable apartment
complex faced ippmediate eviction because the
owner was in the process of selling the property.
Public outcry caused the owner to rescind the
eviction notices.

For Alan Wolf, chair of the CCDC Board of
Directors and President of the SERG Group,
Chimney Cove was the tipping point. “Back to
2016, many of us saw what was happening across
the country,” Wolf recalls. “Everywhere there were
resort communities, there were housing shortages.
The difference was that in those places, private
and philanthropic partners came together to move
faster than government could to help alleviate

the shortage.”

CCDC was designed to move with speed

and purpose to provide Hilton Head and
Bluffton workers with affordable housing in the
communities where they work. Instead of waiting
for years for new construction projects to clear
regulatory hurdles, the organization focuses on
acquiring and preserving existing homes, an
approach that delivers immediate impact.

THE POWER OF PARTNERSHIP

From day one, Community Foundation of the
Lowcountry has been central to CCDC's creation
and success. “The very first meeting where

| pitched the idea for CCDC was held in the
Community Foundation’s boardroom,” Wolf
remembers. “And CFL has been absolutely
instrumental during every step, from conception

to implementation to startup to future growth
planning. CFL has played a prominent role in
providing connections in the community that have
added value to the organization. And they not only
believed in our vision, but they also helped fund it.”

CFLs $100,000 matching grant provided CCDC’s
initial administrative budget and momentum to
launch. Since then, CFL has remained a

(bottom) the CCDC Board meets at CFL

| | g BRRIEY 2 53
“(Top) CCDC's Alan Wolf and Carletha Frazier;

cornerstone investor, investing $1 million in
altruistic capital, helping to partially fund nearly
half of the homes now under CCDC ownership.
CCDC board member Ken Campbell, a longtime
residential and land developer, describes the
Community Foundation’s role in CCDC's success
as indispensable. “We would not be where we
are today without CFL's support: financially,”
strategically, and through their ability to connect
us with community leaders, donors, and affordable
housing advocates.”

IMPACTING THE LOCAL
WORKFORCE

CCDC's results speak for themselves. The 41
CCDC homes (23 in Bluffton, 18 on Hilton Head
Island) provide affordable housing for over 125
local employees. To qualify for one of the rental
properties, prospective tenants must work for a
local employer and earn between 50% to 120%

of the AMI.

21




22

CCDC Program Manager Carletha Frazier, who
oversees property operations, says the application
process is simple and straightforward. “"We give
first priority to those applicants that are being
displaced,” Frazier said. “Our tenants include a
wide range of professionals: healthcare, hospitality,
construction, and small business owners.”

For local workers, being able to afford housing
where they work is a significant challenge. CCDC
tenant Savannah Langley, a single mother of two
young boys and social media manager in the
hospitality industry, has called Bluffton/Hilton Head

* home since 2012. “CCDC has given me access to
" a stable, affordable home in Bluffton. It's close to

my workp‘lace, my kids' schools, and the support
system that is essential to our daily lives,” said
Langley, “I've known several people that have
been forced out of the community altogether just
to find housing that is remotely affordable.”

A BLUEPRINT FOR THE FUTURE

With its initial acquisition phase nearly complete
(50 homes acquired is the short-term goal), CCDC
is preparing for its next chapter: new development
and redevelopment projects that will expand the
region’s affordable housing supply even further.

Savannah Langley at her home
with her children

Among the initiatives in motion is the planned

$50 million Housing Impact Fund, modeled after
successful efforts in Charlotte and Charleston.

The fund will invite both philanthropic and private
investors to support the mission through a mix of
altruistic and impact-based capital, providing long-
term financial sustainability for CCDC's work.

FUTURE ENDEAVORS

With the future expansion of CCDC's properties
and its impact on the workforce, Wolf expects
the partnership with CCDC and Community
Foundation of the Lowcountry to enter a new
phase. “l think as our organization grows, we are
going to lean more heavily on the training and
development resources that CFL offers,” said
Wolf. “And we are looking forward to a continued
partnership from an altruistic standpoint.”

Just three years ago, affordable workforce housing
in the Lowcountry felt like an unsolvable challenge.
Today, partnerships like CCDC and CFL are making
affordable workforce housing a reality for the
workers who serve, maintain, and enrich our region.

"|ocal workforce housing programs and nonprofits
like CCDC are starting to make a real difference,”
says Langley. "These efforts are helping to create
more access and affordability for working families,
and I'm hopeful we'll continue to see more
housing solutions in the near future.”



“ /FY°26 2" Quarter,
- _Financial Report




HiltonHead PSD

21 Oak Park Drive ‘it

PO Box 21264 .
Hilton Head Island, SC 29925
www.hhpsd.com

To: Commissioners
Pete Nardi, General Manager

From: Amy Graybill, Finance Manager

Subject: Financial Highlights — Fiscal Year Unaudited Financial Statements and Results,
Period Ending December 31, 2025

Date: February 25, 2026

Introduction

Staff has prepared the following unaudited financial statements and highlights for December 31,
2025 for discussion at the Commission Meeting on February 25, 2026.

No Commission action is required.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Table A-1 on the following page contains the District’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position as of December 31, 2025 compared to budget.

The change in net position for the period was $8,062,790, which was $3,954,690 higher than the
budgeted change in net position of $4,108,100. Operating income was favorable to budget with
lower operating revenues than budgeted being more than offset by lower operating expenses than
budgeted. On the non-operating side, interest earnings remain stronger than budgeted, a large
capacity fee payment was received, and grant revenue is higher than budgeted.



Table A-1
Hilton Head PSD

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Fiscal Year to Date as of December 31, 2025

FY 26 Actual to FY 26 Budget

Fiscal Year 2026 Comparison
Dollars %

Operating Revenues Actual Budget Favorable (Unfavorable)
Water Service $ 4,721,541 $ 4,971,900 $ (250,359) -5.0%
Sewer Service 3,820,154 3,803,700 16,454 0.4%
Tap In Fees - Water 103,004 110,400 (7,396) -6.7%
Connection Fees - Sewer 71,168 135,000 (63,832) -47.3%
Golf Course Irrigation 117,534 119,100 (1,566) -1.3%
Disaster recovery, net - - - 100.0%
Service Fees 12,744 10,050 2,694 26.8%
Other Operating Revenues 24,402 19,150 5,252 27.4%
Total Operating Revenues 8,870,547 9,169,300 (298,753) -3.3%
Departmental Expenses
Payroll & Related 2,710,137 2,829,000 118,863 4.2%
Administrative Expenses 627,136 622,900 (4,236) -0.7%
Operations 1,849,442 1,808,000 (41,442) -2.3%
Maintenance 716,314 832,950 116,636 14.0%
Purchased Water 762,052 966,200 204,148 21.1%
Water Tap In Expenses 103,726 82,500 (21,226) -25.7%
Sewer Connection Expenses 65,860 126,000 60,140 47.7%
Professional Fees 43,711 106,500 62,789 59.0%
Total Departmental Expenses 6,878,378 7,374,050 495,672 6.7%
Depreciation 2,750,217 2,775,000 24,783 0.9%
Total Operating Expenses 9,628,595 10,149,050 520,455 5.1%
Operating income (loss) (758,048) (979,750) 221,702 22.6%
Non-operating revenues
Property taxes-G.O. Debt Levy 882,050 790,100 91,950 11.6%
Property taxes-Operations Levy 558,916 494,000 64,916 13.1%
Rental Income 73,664 73,650 14 0.0%
Tower Lease Income 309,154 307,950 1,204 0.4%
Interest Income - Leases 17,008 17,250 (242) -1.4%
Interest Income 774,946 458,900 316,046 68.9%
Gain (Loss) of disposal of equipment - 7,500 (7,500) -100.0%
Total Non-operating Revenues 2,615,738 2,149,350 466,388 21.7%
Non-operating Expenses
Interest expense 492,592 496,500 3,908 0.8%
Bond Issuance Costs - - - 0.0%
Total Non-operating Expenses 492,592 496,500 3,908 0.8%
Total Non-operating Revenues/Exp. 2,123,146 1,652,850 470,296 28.5%
Increase (decrease) in net position, before capital contributions 1,365,098 673,100 691,998 102.8%
Water Capacity Fee 232,170 57,000 175,170 307.3%
Sewer Capacity Fee 284,248 78,000 206,248 264.4%
Capital Grant Income 6,181,274 3,300,000 2,881,274 87.3%
Developer Contributions of Systems - - - 0.0%
Total Capital Contributions 6,697,692 3,435,000 3,262,692 95.0%

$ 8,062,790 $ 4,108,100 $ 3,954,690 96.3%

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of the fiscal year

Net position, December 31, 2025

$ 67,333,504

$ 75,396,294



Budget to Actual Highlights

Operating Revenues: Actual operating revenues are $8,870,547 versus budgeted operating
revenues of $9,169,300 which results in a variance of $298,753 or 3.3% under budget. The
following is a summary of material/selected variances' for the Operating Revenue categories:

e Water Service revenues are under budget by $250,359 or 5.0% and Sewer Service
revenues are over budget by $16,454 or 0.4%. Billed water consumption for the first
quarter of fiscal year (FY) 2026 decreased 65 million gallons from 1,128 million
gallons billed during the first quarter of FY 2025 to 1,063 million gallons billed
during the first quarter of FY 2026 which may be partially attributable to increased
rainfall. During the first half of FY 2026, rainfall increased 10.7 inches over the prior
year with 39.1 inches recorded at the treatment plant during the first half of FY 2026
versus 28.4 inches recorded during the same period in FY 2025. Sewer service
revenues are not as adversely affected by reduced consumption due to the residential
sewer cap.

Total Operating Expenses: Total operating expenses are $520,455 or 5.1% under budget. The
following is a summary of material/selected variances for the Operating Expenses categories:

e Payroll & Related is under budget by $118,863 or 4.2% due to the timing of filling
open positions.

e Maintenance expense is under budget by $116,636 or 14.0% which is mostly related
to lower lift station and well maintenance than budgeted to date. This area may come
more in line to budget as the year progresses.

e Purchased Water is under budget by $204,148 or 21.1% due to less water purchased
related to lower billed water consumption.

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses: Actual non-operating revenues are $2,615,738 versus
budgeted non-operating revenues of $2,149,350 which results in a variance of $466,388 or 21.7%
over budget. This is mostly related to Interest Income which is $316,046 over budget in line with
continued higher market interest rates. Staff endeavors to keep all cash not needed for current
operations in the SC Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP); while interest rates have been
declining, the LGIP is still seeing rates over 3.9%. Interest was conservatively budgeted at 3.25%.

Capital Contributions: Capacity fees, capital grant income, and developer contributions of
systems came in $3,262,692 over budget. The District received a large capacity fee payment for
the Northpoint project during this quarter. Additionally, grant income is $2,881,274 over budget
due to the timing of grant project progression. Less was expended during the last quarter of the
prior year than budgeted which is being recouped now as the projects are moving forward quickly.
The District expects to have expended all $10 million of the SCIIP grant by the end of the
upcoming quarter.

! In most cases, a variance of more than $100,000 or 10% constitutes a material variance for quarterly reports. Water
and Sewer Variances are typically discussed regardless of their variances given that they are the two main drivers
for the District’s overall revenue.



Statements of Net Position

Table A-2 below and on the following page contains the District’s Statement of Net Position as of

December 31, 2025, compared to the end of the prior fiscal year, June 30, 2025.

Table A-2
Hilton Head PSD
Statements of Net Position

December 31 June 30
2025 2025
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents Available for Operations $ 18,171,254 $ 15,873,800
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Banks (Restricted) 18,090,085 19,208,123
Cash and Cash Equivalents Held by Beaufort County Treasurer (Restricted) 1,362,493 805,891
Accounts Receivable - Trade, net 1,666,880 1,813,834
Accounts Receivable - Grants 1,136,745 1,241,109
Accounts Receivable - Connection Grants 26,910 18,089
Accrued Interest Receivable 17,214 17,214
Lease Receivable, due within one year 142,532 484,041
Sewer and Capacity Assessments, due within one year 115,154 207,894
Inventory 461,429 582,825
Prepaid Expenses 626,475 418,651
Total current assets 41,817,171 40,671,471
Noncurrent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Nondepreciable Assets 21,589,754 12,410,499
Depreciable Assets, net 57,332,077 59,753,190
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 78,921,831 72,163,689
Lease Receivable, due after one year 903,080 903,080
Sewer and Capacity Assessments, due after one year 1,892,143 1,752,864
Total Noncurrent Assets 81,717,054 74,819,633
Total Assets 123,534,225 115,491,104
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 833,094 833,094
Deferred Outflows from Refinancing Debt - -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 833,094 833,094
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 124,367,319 §$ 116,324,198

4



Table A-2
Hilton Head PSD

Statements of Net Position (continued)

December 31 June 30
2025 2025
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable-Trade $ 545,072 $ 523,576
Accounts Payable-Construction 343,363 470,761
Customer Deposits 224,780 226,028
Unearned Revenue 43,585 17,341
Accrued Payroll & Other Liabilities 579,668 612,989
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets 1,736,468 1,850,695
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable - Construction 2,424,075 1,898,704
Interest Payable 156,285 155,320
Notes Payable, due within one year 126,149 251,380
Bonds Payable, due within one year 3,436,822 3,436,822
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 6,143,331 5,742,226
Total Current Liabilities 7,879,799 7,592,921
Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes Payable, due after one year 3,954,978 3,954,978
Bonds Payable, due after one year 30,693,040 30,693,040
Net Pension Liability 4,771,034 4,771,034
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 39,419,052 39,419,052
Total Liabilities 47,298,851 47,011,973
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 381,199 381,199
Deferred Inflows Related to Lease Revenue 1,290,975 1,597,522
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,672,174 1,978,721
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 48,971,025 48,990,694
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 54,474,752 50,045,908
Restricted for Debt Service & Grants 2,764,945 1,270,790
Unrestricted 18,156,597 16,016,806
Total Net Position 75,396,294 67,333,504

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources & Net Position

$ 124,367,319 §$116,324,198




Statement of Net Position Highlights
As of December 31, 2025, total assets and deferred outflows of resources are $124.4 million,
exceeding liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by approximately $75.4 million (See

Table A-2, Pages 4-5).

Current Assets/Liabilities/Debt

The increases and decreases in current assets and current liabilities are mostly expected to be
timing related. Unrestricted cash may decline later in the year as capital projects are completed.
While more capacity fees and interest income were collected than budgeted, these are expected to
be offset by the remaining funding required to complete the grant/debt funded projects. Grants
receivable is dependent upon the monthly construction expenditures eligible for reimbursement
and how quickly the granting agency makes reimbursement payments. Lease receivable and
assessments receivable decrease throughout the year as regularly scheduled tower lease payments
and assessment payments are received. Prepaid expenses includes the annual insurance premium
which is due in July of each year. Accounts payable fluctuates based on the timing of purchases
and the final check run of the reporting period. Accrued payroll decreased due to the timing of the
last pay check date in the reporting period which resulted in fewer days to accrue in the reporting
period.

The large increases in nondepreciable assets (which includes construction in progress) and
decreases in restricted cash are mainly related to the continuation of the construction phase of the
grant/debt funded projects.

Net Position

Changes in net position resulting from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses and capital
contributions increased $8,062,790 since June 30, 2025. Net position invested in capital assets has
increased $4,428,844 due to asset activity (including depreciation) and related debt activity, while
net position restricted for debt service and grants has increased $1,494,155 related to the timing of
debt payments. Unrestricted net position has increased $2,139,791.

Capital Assets

Table A-3 on the following page presents a comparison of capital expenditures to date against the
FY 2026 capital budget. The table only shows work for which the District has been invoiced
through December. Planning and preliminary work has been started on many of these projects that
will be completed, invoiced, and reported in upcoming quarters.

Net property, plant and equipment has increased by $6,758,142 during the first quarter of FY 2026.
Total additions of $9,508,359 were offset by depreciation of $2,750,217.



Table A-3

CIP Projects - Capital

Expended 2026
as of Approved
12/31/2025 Amount

Remaining/
Variance

WWTP

WWTP Switch Gear for generator Replace generator switch gear

125000 $ 255500 $  (130,500)

TOTAL NON GRANT RATE FUNDED CIP PROJECTS
Grant Projects - See recap on following page
Less: Projects carried over from FY 2024

Total FY 2026 Additions/Budgeted Amount

1,331,736 $ 4,948,000
8,176,623 6,500,000

$  (1,598,000)
9,508,359 $ 9,850,000

Influent Screen Backup to band screen - 750,000 (750,000)
Reuse Water System Upgrades/improvements to reuse system 22,783 100,000 (77,217)
Return Activated Sludge Building  Electrical cabinet improvements - 85,000 (85,000)
Clarifier Clarifier #2-replace sweeper arnysuction line 26,906 150,000 (123,094)
Filter Building Blowers 6 new actuator (air) valves 59,040 75,000 (15,960)
CROM Tank Install isolation valve on CROM tank line - 55,000 (55,000)
Holding Ponds Install 2 aerators in Pond #3 30,775 50,000 (19,225)
System Rehab Replace equipment, valves and actuators 20,283 225,000 (204,717)
TOTAL WWTP 284,787 1,745,500 (1,460,713)
Collection System
Gravity Main Refurbishment Gravity main line repairs and relining 7,673 400,000 (392,327)
Lift Stations - Control Panels Replace lift station control panels 76,013 175,000 (98,987)
Lift Stations - Rehab Rehab and pumps 168,970 425,000 (256,030)
District Funded MSP Projects District Funded MSP Projects - 62,500 (62,500)
System Rehab Replace pipes, manholes, laterals, etc. - 225,000 (225,000)
LPS Changeouts LPS Changeouts 20,600 65,000 (44,400)
0Old House Creek Sewer Main Sewer Collector Main 385,228 - 385,228
TOTAL COLLECTION SYSTEM 658,484 1,352,500 (694,016)
Distribution System -
Water Line Replacement Replace 12" Ribaut Island Rd line - 170,000
Metering System Changing out meters & base stations 208,324 600,000 (391,676)
RO Plant Replace actuator-booster pump #3 - 40,000 (40,000)
Fire Hydrants New and replacement hydrants 29,702 90,000 (60,298)
System Rehab Replace valves/equipmt/RO membranes etc 29,779 200,000 (170,221)
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 267,805 1,100,000 (662,195)
Facilities and Equipment
SCADA Improvements Wildhorse, Seabrook, & Ashmore upgrades 9,776 267,000 (257,224)
Admin Building Building improvements, furniture, etc. 5,364 50,000 (44,636)
Technology General computer equipment 10,560 30,000 (19,440)
Vehicles Fleet replacements - 260,000 (260,000)
Ops Equipment - Water Line locator equipment 20,113 18,000 2,113
Ops Equipment - Sewer Camera to inspect gravity sewer lines 74,847 115,000 (40,153)
Operations Equipment Enclosed trailer for safety equipment - 10,000 (10,000)
| TOTAL FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT 120,660 750,000 (629,340)

$ (3,446,264)



Capital Assets(continued)

SCIIP/ARPA Projects

The District is also moving forward with capital projects that will utilize the Beaufort County
ARPA allocation, the SCIIP Grant, and the RIA State Grant. Please find below a recap of the status
of those projects through December 31, 2025 as well as a recap of the project totals and funding
sources to date. Staff will update the schedules below for any necessary change orders or
miscellaneous project costs necessary as the projects progress. The schedule below has been
updated to reflect recently completed change orders as well as an electrical installation cost to be
paid to the District’s utility provider for ASR 2. District staff will also be monitoring bond proceed
funds for potential arbitrage earnings (earning more interest on bond proceeds than the stated rate
of interest on the bonds) and may make recommendations to use bond proceeds for larger rate
funded budgeted items such as the gravity sewer relining and influent screen projects depending
upon the timing of grant project invoicing. Currently, the District is on track to spend down the
bond funds on grant projects in accordance with the arbitrage deadlines so that the District may
retain all interest earned on the bond proceeds for bond project costs.

Spent As Of FY 2026 to Remaining/

SCIIP/ARPA Projects 06/30/2025 date Grand Total Project Total Variance

LOM Booster Pump $ 1,798,227 $ 332774 § 2,131,001 $ 2338422 $ (207,421)

RO Plant Expansion 2,467,388 5,490,802 7,958,690 12,306,559 (4,347,869)

RO Wells 3,142,722 1,523,001 4,665,723 7,083,840 (2,418,117)

ASR 2 3,428,878 721,647 4,150,525 10,718,054 (6,567,529)

Screw Pump 58,215 108,399 166,614 4,736,000 (4,569,386)

Grand Total $ 10,895,930 $ 8,176,623 $ 19,072,553 $ 37,182,875 $ (18,110,322)

Misc. Admin, Preliminary Construction
Esmt, Legal, Etc. Engineering Engineering Construction Construction

Projects Expenses Contract Contract Contract C/O Contracts Project Total
LOM Booster Pump $ 150 $ 197,000 $ 140,000 $ 1,999,807 $ 1,465 § 2,338,422
Water Supply Planning 226,126 - - - - 226,126
RO Plant Expansion - 693,000 1,026,000 10,523,000 64,559 12,306,559
RO Wells 26,005 401,000 799,450 5,857,385 - 7,083,840
ASR 2 38,116 723,000 860,550 9,096,388 - 10,718,054
Screw Pumps - 178,000 188,000 4,370,000 - 4,736,000
Total $ 290,396 $ 2,192,000 $ 3,014,000 $ 31,846,580 $ 66,024 $ 37,409,000
External Funding Sources
SRF Loan, net (252,796)  (1,823,204) (296,429) = E (2,372,429)
SCIIP Grant - - - (10,000,000) - (10,000,000)
BC ARPA - - - (1,000,000) - (1,000,000)
SC RIA Grant - - - (1,500,000) - (1,500,000)
Net of Grants/SRF $ 37,600 $ 368,796 $ 2,717,571 $ 19,346,580 $ 66,024 $ 22,536,571
2024B Bond Proceeds, net of closing costs (20,268,791)
2024B Bond Proceeds Interest Income through 12/31/25 (953,380)
Remaining local match to be funded via interest income and cash $ 1,314,400




Statement of Cash Flow

The cash flow statement presents cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.
The statement of cash flows provides the preparers and users of the statements the following:

v

v
v

v
v
v

Enables the assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty surrounding future cash
flows.

Furnishes reconciliation between net income and cash flows from operations.

Indicates the impact on the District’s financial status of its investing, debt, and financing
transactions.

Provides information about the District’s cash receipts and cash payments for the period.
Provides the change in cash and cash equivalents for the period.

Ties to page 4, Statements of Net Position under current assets and restricted assets.

Unrestricted cash available for operations increased $2,297,454 from $15,873,800 as of June 30,
2025 to $18,171,254 as of December 31, 2025. This is mostly expected to be timing related as the
District completes its current year CIP projects and finalizes the grant/debt funded projects.

Restricted cash in banks for debt service has increased $938,518 from $620,219 as of June 30,
2025, to $1,558,737 as of December 31, 2025, in accordance with revenue debt payment activity.

Restricted cash held at the SC Local Government Investment Pool has decreased $2,056,556 from
$18,587,904 as of June 30, 2025, to $16,531,348 as of December 31, 2025, due to construction
payments from the 2024B bond proceeds account.

Restricted cash held by Beaufort County has increased $556,602 from $805,891 on June 30, 2025,
to $1,362,493 as of December 31, 2025, in accordance with GO debt activity.

Total combined unrestricted and restricted cash has decreased $1,736,018 since June 30, 2025.



TABLE A-4
Hilton Head PSD
Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers

December 31

2025

June 30
2025

8,983,030 $ 16,329,803

Cash Paid to Suppliers (5,396,234)  (10,415,342)
Cash Paid to Employees (1,580,397) (2,919,547)
Other Revenues 24,402 49,577
Net Cash Provided by Operatin_g Activities 2,030,801 3,044,491
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income 774,946 1,440,962
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 774,946 1,440,962
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Property Taxes Collected - Operations Levy 558,916 1,372,970
Sewer Assessments Collected 66,059 143,460
Sewer Assessments Financed (140,645) (62,871)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 484,330 1,453,559
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capacity Fees 516,418 170,944
Capacity Fee Assessments 28,048 64,864
Property Taxes Collected - G.O. Debt Levy 882,050 1,877,746
Interest Paid (491,627) (627,003)
Proceeds from Series 2024A GO SRF Loan - 2,589,929
Proceeds from Series 2024B GO Bonds - 20,400,000
Bond Issuance Costs - (175,243)
Principal Payments on Financed Purchase, Bonds and Notes (125,231) (3,641,308)
Rental and Tower Lease Income 461,032 737,165
Proceeds from Capital Grant 6,285,638 2,255,991
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 48,559
Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment (9,110,387) (9,958,173)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,554,059) 13,743,471
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 1,736,018 19,682,483
35,887,814 $ 16,205,331

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

37,623,832 $§ 35,887,814

10



TABLE A-4

Hilton Head PSD
Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided December 31 June 30
by Operating Activities: 2025 2025
Operating Income (Loss) $ (758,048) $ (2,385,468)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 2,750,217 5,420,424
Decrease in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - -
Difference Between GASB 68 and Actual Contributions - (201,754)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Accounts Receivable - Trade 146,954 71,748
Accounts Receivable - Project SAFE (8,821) 108,704
Inventories 121,396 (87,236)
Prepaid Assets (207,824) (74,198)
Accounts Payable - Trade 21,496 113,329
Customer Deposits (1,248) 41,332
Accrued Payroll & Other Liabilities (33,321) 37,610
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,030,801 $ 3,044,491

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Available for Operations

Demand Deposits (interest and non-interest bearing) $ 1,742,392 $§ 1,475,132
Certificate of Deposit Cash Equivalent 3,000,000 3,000,000
SC Local Government Investment Pool 12,843,130 11,311,985
Held by Beaufort County Treasurer 585,732 86,683

Total Available for Operations $ 18,171,254 $ 15,873,800

Restricted

Cash in Banks $ 1,558,737 $ 620,219
SC Local Government Investment Pool 16,531,348 18,587,904
Held by Beaufort County Treasurer 1,362,493 805,891

Total Restricted $ 19,452,578 $ 20,014,014

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 37,623,832 $ 35,887,814

Supplemental Disclosures
Noncash Financing Activities:
Developer Contribution of Systems $ - $ 222,500

11



Financial Ratio Analysis

The analysis of financial statement ratios can be a useful tool when evaluating the financial
performance of a business entity. Specifically, ratio analysis can identify a business’s strengths
and weaknesses.

The following table contains ratio benchmarks as determined by the District’s financial advisors
and the District’s financial ratios for the current fiscal year, prior fiscal year to date, and the end
of the past fiscal year. The ratios examined below are some of the metrics most commonly
examined by the District’s rating agencies.

Financial Ratios
December December June

Benchmarks Dec 2025 to Dec 2024 2025 2024 2025
Current Ratio >6.00 Benchmark Met 12.22 13.27 11.10
Operating Ratio <0.60 Benchmark not met 0.80 0.81 0.81
Days Cash on Hand >120 Benchmark Met 500 472 442
Accounts Receivable (days of revenue) <35 Benchmark Met 22 21 25
Long-Term Debt to Net Position <0.75 Benchmark Met 0.46 0.61 0.51
Debt Coverage Ratio Projection >150% Complies with Bond Convenants 295% 245% 274%

Liquidity Ratios

Liquidity ratios indicate the ability of a company to meet current financial obligations as they
become due. As calculated in this section, a higher ratio indicates more of an ability to meet these
obligations.

The Current Ratio

The Current Ratio (current non-restricted assets over current liabilities to be paid from non-
restricted assets) was 12.22 at December 31, 2025 which is greater than the benchmark of 6.0.
Current non-restricted assets increased by $1,329,003 and current liabilities to be paid from non-
restricted assets increased by $236,698 since December 31, 2024. The large increase in current
assets is mostly related to increases in unrestricted cash.

The Operating Ratio

The operating ratio, total operating expenses less depreciation to operating revenues, indicates a
company’s level of operating expenses in comparison to operating revenue. As calculated in this
section, a higher ratio indicates a higher level of expense in comparison to operating revenue. The
current operating ratio is 0.80 compared to the December 31, 2024 ratio of 0.81 and is higher than
the established benchmark of less than 0.60. Total operating expenses less depreciation increased
$518,795 while total operating revenues increased $735,857. While this benchmark has not been
met, any value less than 1.0 indicates that operating expenses less depreciation are being fully
covered by operating revenues. Movement towards the benchmark would allow more operating
funds on an annual basis to fund CIP projects.

12



Days Cash on Hand

The days cash on hand ratio measures how many days a company can pay its expenses. The
formula for this ratio is current unrestricted cash and investments plus any restricted cash and
investments available for general system purposes divided by operating expenditures minus
depreciation, divided by 365. A higher days of cash on hand ratio is more desirable as it indicates
that an entity has more cash to cover its expenses. The days cash on hand ratio exceeds its
benchmark and is 500 as of December 31, 2025, compared to 472 as of December 31, 2024, This
increase is expected to be partially timing related as the District carries out its CIP projects for FY
2026 and grant/debt funded projects.

The Accounts Receivable (Days of Revenue) Ratio

The Accounts Receivable (Days of Revenue) ratio indicates the level of accounts receivable in
comparison to the level of revenues being collected over a 12-month period (last 12 months or
LTM). As calculated in this section, a higher ratio may indicate that receivables are growing in
disproportion to revenues. The ratio is calculated by dividing accounts receivable by the average
days’ operating revenues.? This ratio was 22 at December 31, 2025 and 21 at December 31, 2024.
Both years meet the benchmark of lower than 35 and indicate that the District is carrying less than
one month’s worth of receivables which is in line with its monthly billing schedule.

Leverage Ratios

The following leverage ratio indicates how much debt the District has in relationship to its net
position. As calculated in this section, a higher ratio indicates a higher level of debt in comparison
to the net position.

The Long-term Debt to Net Position Ratio

The Long-term Debt to Net Position ratio, long term debt divided by the net position, is 0.46, has
decreased from the December 31, 2024, ratio of 0.61, and meets the benchmark of less than 0.75.
Long-term debt was decreased by $3,391,836 while the net position has increased by $13,328,562.

Debt Coverage

Bond covenants require that the District maintain and collect rates and charges that together with
income are reasonably expected to yield annual net earnings equal to at least the sum of one
hundred twenty percent (120%) of annual principal and interest requirements for all revenue bonds
outstanding. As of December 31, 2025, the debt service projection calculation is 295% which
exceeds the fiscal year 2026 budgeted debt coverage ratio of 256%, the required ratio of 120%,
and the target rate of 150%.

2 For purposes of this analysis, accounts receivable is defined as those trade receivables excluding extraordinary receivables, unbilled revenue,
tower lease revenue, and notes receivable. This ratio is derived using the LTM revenues.



Customer Growth

Total water/irrigation service EDUs have increased by 62 since June 30, 2025, for a total of 19,988
EDUs. This is a 0.31% increase for fiscal year 2026 compared to the 0.37% increase experienced
during the first half of last fiscal year. The current EDUs include 18,863 water service units, 1,037
irrigation service units, and 88 miscellaneous water units such as dock meters, hydrants, pool

meters, and golf course water coolers.

Water / Sewer Connection Growth 12/31/2026
Water & Irr. Only Water  Change in Sewer Change in % Sewer to
Date EDU's EDU's Water EDU's EDU's Sewer EDU's Water EDU's
06/30/24 19,926 18,805 N/A 18,049 N/A 95.98%
09/30/25 19,963 18,839 37 18,084 35 95.99%
12/31/25 19,988 18,863 25 18,120 36 96.06%
Change in EDU's 62 2

Sewer service EDUs have increased by 71 since June 30, 2025, for a total of 18,120 EDUs. This
is a 0.39% increase for fiscal year 2026 compared to 0.50% for the first half of fiscal year 2025.
As shown in the above table, the sewer to water customer percentage has increased to 96.06%.

Fiscal Outlook
As of December 31, 2025, the District’s financial condition is stable.

Staff looks forward to discussing the second quarter fiscal year 2026 review of the District’s
financial condition at the February 25, 2026, Commission Meeting.

14



HiltonHeadPSD

21 Oak Park Drive sttt
PO Box 21264 <l
Hilton Head Island, SC 29925
www.hhpsd.com

To: Commissioners
Pete Nardi, General Manager

From: Amy Graybill, Finance Manager

Subject: Financial Highlights — Fiscal Year Unaudited Financial Statements and Results,
Period Ending December 31, 2025

Date: February 25, 2026

Introduction

Staff has prepared the following unaudited financial statements and highlights for December 31,
2025 for discussion at the Commission Meeting on February 25, 2026.

No Commission action is required.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Table A-1 on the following page contains the District’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position as of December 31, 2025 compared to budget.

The change in net position for the period was $8,062,790, which was $3,954,690 higher than the
budgeted change in net position of $4,108,100. Operating income was favorable to budget with
lower operating revenues than budgeted being more than offset by lower operating expenses than
budgeted. On the non-operating side, interest earnings remain stronger than budgeted, a large
capacity fee payment was received, and grant revenue is higher than budgeted.



Table A-1
Hilton Head PSD

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Fiscal Year to Date as of December 31, 2025

FY 26 Actual to FY 26 Budget

Fiscal Year 2026 Comparison

Dollars %
Operating Revenues Actual Budget Favorable (Unfavorable)
Water Service $ 4,721,541 $ 4,971,900 $ (250,359) -5.0%
Sewer Service 3,820,154 3,803,700 16,454 0.4%
Tap In Fees - Water 103,004 110,400 (7,396) -6.7%
Connection Fees - Sewer 71,168 135,000 (63,832) -47.3%
Golf Course Irrigation 117,534 119,100 (1,566) -1.3%
Disaster recovery, net - - - 100.0%
Service Fees 12,744 10,050 2,694 26.8%
Other Operating Revenues 24,402 19,150 3,252 27.4%
Total Operating Revenues 8,870,547 9,169,300 (298,753) -3.3%
Departmental Expenses
Payroll & Related 2,710,137 2,829,000 118,863 4.2%
Administrative Expenses 627,136 622,900 (4,236) -0.7%
Operations 1,849,442 1,808,000 (41,442) -2.3%
Maintenance 716,314 832,950 116,636 14.0%
Purchased Water 762,052 966,200 204,148 21.1%
Water Tap In Expenses 103,726 82,500 (21,226) -25.7%
Sewer Connection Expenses 65,860 126,000 60,140 47.7%
Professional Fees 43,711 106,500 62,789 59.0%
Total Departmental Expenses 6,878,378 7,374,050 495,672 6.7%
Depreciation 2,750,217 2,775,000 24,783 0.9%
Total Operating Expenses 9,628,595 10,149,050 520,455 5.1%
Operating income (loss) (758,048) (979,750) 221,702 22.6%
Non-operating revenues
Property taxes-G.O. Debt Levy 882,050 790,100 91,950 11.6%
Property taxes-Operations Levy 558,916 494,000 64,916 13.1%
Rental Income 73,664 73,650 14 0.0%
Tower Lease Income 309,154 307,950 1,204 0.4%
Interest Income - Leases 17,008 17,250 (242) -1.4%
Interest Income 774,946 458,900 316,046 68.9%
Gain (Loss) of disposal of equipment - 7,500 (7,500) -100.0%
Total Non-operating Revenues 2,615,738 2,149,350 466,388 21.7%
Non-operating Expenses
Interest expense 492,592 496,500 3,908 0.8%
Bond Issuance Costs - - - 0.0%
Total Non-operating Expenses 492,592 496,500 3,908 0.8%
Total Non-operating Revenues/Exp. 2,123,146 1,652,850 470,296 28.5%
Increase (decrease) in net position, before capital contributions 1,365,098 673,100 691,998 102.8%
Water Capacity Fee 232,170 57,000 175,170 307.3%
Sewer Capacity Fee 284,248 78,000 206,248 264.4%
Capital Grant Income 6,181,274 3,300,000 2,881,274 87.3%
Developer Contributions of Systems - - - 0.0%
Total Capital Contributions 6,697,692 3,435,000 3,262,692 95.0%
Change in net position $ 8,062,790 $§ 4,108,100 $ 3,954,690 96.3%
Net position, beginning of the fiscal year $ 67,333,504

Net position, December 31, 2025

$ 75,396,204



Budget to Actual Highlights

Operating Revenues: Actual operating revenues are $8,870,547 versus budgeted operating
revenues of $9,169,300 which results in a variance of $298,753 or 3.3% under budget. The
following is a summary of material/selected variances! for the Operating Revenue categories:

e Water Service revenues are under budget by $250,359 or 5.0% and Sewer Service
revenues are over budget by $16,454 or 0.4%. Billed water consumption for the first
quarter of fiscal year (FY) 2026 decreased 65 million gallons from 1,128 million
gallons billed during the first quarter of FY 2025 to 1,063 million gallons billed
during the first quarter of FY 2026 which may be partially attributable to increased
rainfall. During the first half of FY 2026, rainfall increased 10.7 inches over the prior
year with 39.1 inches recorded at the treatment plant during the first half of FY 2026
versus 28.4 inches recorded during the same period in FY 2025. Sewer service
revenues are not as adversely affected by reduced consumption due to the residential
sewer cap.

Total Operating Expenses: Total operating expenses are $520,455 or 5.1% under budget. The
following is a summary of material/selected variances for the Operating Expenses categories:

e Payroll & Related is under budget by $118,863 or 4.2% due to the timing of filling
open positions.

e Maintenance expense is under budget by $116,636 or 14.0% which is mostly related
to lower lift station and well maintenance than budgeted to date. This area may come
more in line to budget as the year progresses.

o Purchased Water is under budget by $204,148 or 21.1% due to less water purchased
related to lower billed water consumption.

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses: Actual non-operating revenues are $2,615,738 versus
budgeted non-operating revenues of $2,149,350 which results in a variance of $466,388 or 21.7%
over budget. This is mostly related to Interest Income which is $316,046 over budget in line with
continued higher market interest rates. Staff endeavors to keep all cash not needed for current
operations in the SC Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP); while interest rates have been
declining, the LGIP is still seeing rates over 3.9%. Interest was conservatively budgeted at 3.25%.

Capital Contributions: Capacity fees, capital grant income, and developer contributions of
systems came in $3,262,692 over budget. The District received a large capacity fee payment for
the Northpoint project during this quarter. Additionally, grant income is $2,881,274 over budget
due to the timing of grant project progression. Less was expended during the last quarter of the
prior year than budgeted which is being recouped now as the projects are moving forward quickly.
The District expects to have expended all $10 million of the SCIIP grant by the end of the
upcoming quarter.

! In most cases, a variance of more than $100,000 or 10% constitutes a material variance for quarterly reports. Water
and Sewer Variances are typically discussed regardless of their variances given that they are the two main drivers
for the District’s overall revenue.



Statements of Net Position

Table A-2 below and on the following page contains the District’s Statement of Net Position as of

December 31, 2025, compared to the end of the prior fiscal year, June 30, 2025.

Table A-2
Hilton Head PSD
Statements of Net Position

December 31 June 30
2025 2025
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents Available for Operations $ 18,171,254 $ 15,873,800
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Banks (Restricted) 18,090,085 19,208,123
Cash and Cash Equivalents Held by Beaufort County Treasurer (Restricted) 1,362,493 805,891
Accounts Receivable - Trade, net 1,666,880 1,813,834
Accounts Receivable - Grants 1,136,745 1,241,109
Accounts Receivable - Connection Grants 26,910 18,089
Accrued Interest Receivable 17,214 17,214
Lease Receivable, due within one year 142,532 484,041
Sewer and Capacity Assessments, due within one year 115,154 207,894
Inventory 461,429 582,825
Prepaid Expenses 626,475 418,651
Total current assets 41,817,171 40,671,471
Noncurrent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Nondepreciable Assets 21,589,754 12,410,499
Depreciable Assets, net 57,332,077 59,753,190
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 78,921,831 72,163,689
Lease Receivable, due after one year 903,080 903,080
Sewer and Capacity Assessments, due after one year 1,892,143 1,752,864
Total Noncurrent Assets 81,717,054 74,819,633
Total Assets 123,534,225 115,491,104
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 833,094 833,094
Deferred Outflows from Refinancing Debt - -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 833,094 833,094
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 124,367,319 $ 116,324,198

4



Table A-2
Hilton Head PSD

Statements of Net Position (continued)

December 31 June 30
2025 2025
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable-Trade $ 545,072 $ 523,576
Accounts Payable-Construction 343,363 470,761
Customer Deposits 224,780 226,028
Unearned Revenue 43,585 17,341
Accrued Payroll & Other Liabilities 579,668 612,989
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets 1,736,468 1,850,695
Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable - Construction 2,424,075 1,898,704
Interest Payable 156,285 155,320
Notes Payable, due within one year 126,149 251,380
Bonds Payable, due within one year 3,436,822 3,436,822
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 6,143,331 5,742,226
Total Current Liabilities 7,879,799 7,592,921
Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes Payable, due after one year 3,954,978 3,954,978
Bonds Payable, due after one year 30,693,040 30,693,040
Net Pension Liability 4,771,034 4,771,034
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 39,419,052 39,419,052
Total Liabilities 47,298,851 47,011,973
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 381,199 381,199
Deferred Inflows Related to Lease Revenue 1,290,975 1,597,522
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,672,174 1,978,721
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 48,971,025 48,990,694
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 54,474,752 50,045,908
Restricted for Debt Service & Grants 2,764,945 1,270,790
Unrestricted 18,156,597 16,016,806
Total Net Position 75,396,294 67,333,504

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources & Net Position

$ 124,367,319 §$ 116,324,198

5



Statement of Net Position Highlights
As of December 31, 2025, total assets and deferred outflows of resources are $124.4 million,
exceeding liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by approximately $75.4 million (See

Table A-2, Pages 4-5).

Current Assets/Liabilities/Debt

The increases and decreases in current assets and current liabilities are mostly expected to be
timing related. Unrestricted cash may decline later in the year as capital projects are completed.
While more capacity fees and interest income were collected than budgeted, these are expected to
be offset by the remaining funding required to complete the grant/debt funded projects. Grants
receivable is dependent upon the monthly construction expenditures eligible for reimbursement
and how quickly the granting agency makes reimbursement payments. Lease receivable and
assessments receivable decrease throughout the year as regularly scheduled tower lease payments
and assessment payments are received. Prepaid expenses includes the annual insurance premium
which is due in July of each year. Accounts payable fluctuates based on the timing of purchases
and the final check run of the reporting period. Accrued payroll decreased due to the timing of the
last pay check date in the reporting period which resulted in fewer days to accrue in the reporting
period.

The large increases in nondepreciable assets (which includes construction in progress) and

decreases in restricted cash are mainly related to the continuation of the construction phase of the
grant/debt funded projects.

Net Position

Changes in net position resulting from operating and non-operating revenues, expenses and capital
contributions increased $8,062,790 since June 30, 2025. Net position invested in capital assets has
increased $4,428,844 due to asset activity (including depreciation) and related debt activity, while
net position restricted for debt service and grants has increased $1,494,155 related to the timing of
debt payments. Unrestricted net position has increased $2,139,791.

Capital Assets

Table A-3 on the following page presents a comparison of capital expenditures to date against the
FY 2026 capital budget. The table only shows work for which the District has been invoiced
through December. Planning and preliminary work has been started on many of these projects that
will be completed, invoiced, and reported in upcoming quarters.

Net property, plant and equipment has increased by $6,758,142 during the first quarter of FY 2026.
Total additions of $9,508,359 were offset by depreciation of $2,750,217.



Table A-3

CIP Projects - Capital

Expended 2026

as of Approved

12/31/2025 Amount

Remaining/
Variance

WWTP

WWTP Switch Gear for generator Replace generator switch gear

125,000 $ 255,500 $ (130,500)

Influent Screen Backup to band screen - 750,000 (750,000)
Reuse Water System Upgrades/improvements to reuse system 22,783 100,000 (77,217)
Return Activated Sludge Building  Electrical cabinet improvements - 85,000 (85,000)
Clarifier Clarifier #2-replace sweeper arm/suction line 26,906 150,000 (123,094)
Filter Building Blowers 6 new actuator (air) valves 59,040 75,000 (15,960)
CROM Tank Install isolation valve on CROM tank line - 55,000 (55,000)
Holding Ponds Install 2 aerators in Pond #3 30,775 50,000 (19,225)
System Rehab Replace equipment, valves and actuators 20,283 225,000 (204,717)
TOTAL WWTP 284,787 1,745,500 (1,460,713)
Collection System
Gravity Main Refurbishment Gravity main line repairs and relining 7,673 400,000 (392,327)
Lift Stations - Control Panels Replace lift station control panels 76,013 175,000 (98,987)
Lift Stations - Rehab Rehab and pumps 168,970 425,000 (256,030)
District Funded MSP Projects District Funded MSP Projects - 62,500 (62,500)
System Rehab Replace pipes, manholes, laterals, etc. - 225,000 (225,000)
LPS Changeouts LPS Changeouts 20,600 65,000 (44,400)
Old House Creek Sewer Main Sewer Collector Main 385,228 - 385,228
TOTAL COLLECTION SYSTEM 658,484 1,352,500 (694,016)
Distribution System -
Water Line Replacement Replace 12" Ribaut Island Rd line - 170,000
Metering System Changing out meters & base stations 208,324 600,000 (391,676)
RO Plant Replace actuator-booster pump #3 - 40,000 (40,000)
Fire Hydrants New and replacement hydrants 29,702 90,000 (60,298)
System Rehab Replace valves/equipmt/RO membranes etc 29,779 200,000 (170,221)
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 267,805 1,100,000 (662,195)
Facilities and Equipment
SCADA Improvements Wildhorse, Seabrook, & Ashmore upgrades 9,776 267,000 (257,224)
Admin Building Building improvements, furniture, etc. 5,364 50,000 (44,636)
Technology General computer equipment 10,560 30,000 (19,440)
Vehicles Fleet replacements - 260,000 (260,000)
Ops Equipment - Water Line locator equipment 20,113 18,000 2,113
Ops Equipment - Sewer Camera to inspect gravity sewer lines 74,847 115,000 (40,153)
Operations Equipment Enclosed trailer for safety equipment - 10,000 (10,000)
TOTAL FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT 120,660 750,000 (629,340)

TOTAL NON GRANT RATE FUNDED CIP PROJECTS
Grant Projects - See recap on following page
Less: Projects carried over from FY 2024

Total FY 2026 Additions/Budgeted Amount

1,331,736 $ 4,948,000
8,176,623 6,500,000

$ (1,598,000)
9,508,359 $ 9,850,000

$  (3,446,264)



Capital Assets(continued)

SCIIP/ARPA Projects

The District is also moving forward with capital projects that will utilize the Beaufort County
ARPA allocation, the SCIIP Grant, and the RIA State Grant. Please find below a recap of the status
of those projects through December 31, 2025 as well as a recap of the project totals and funding
sources to date. Staff will update the schedules below for any necessary change orders or
miscellaneous project costs necessary as the projects progress. The schedule below has been
updated to reflect recently completed change orders as well as an electrical installation cost to be
paid to the District’s utility provider for ASR 2. District staff will also be monitoring bond proceed
funds for potential arbitrage earnings (earning more interest on bond proceeds than the stated rate
of interest on the bonds) and may make recommendations to use bond proceeds for larger rate
funded budgeted items such as the gravity sewer relining and influent screen projects depending
upon the timing of grant project invoicing. Currently, the District is on track to spend down the
bond funds on grant projects in accordance with the arbitrage deadlines so that the District may

retain all interest earned on the bond proceeds for bond project costs.

Spent As Of FY 2026 to Remaining/

SCIIP/ARPA Projects 06/30/2025 date Grand Total Project Total Variance
LOM Booster Pump $ 1,798227 $§ 332774 § 2,131,001 $ 2338422 $ (207,421)
RO Plant Expansion 2,467,888 5,490,802 7,958,690 12,306,559 (4,347,869)
RO Wells 3,142,722 1,523,001 4,665,723 7,083,840 (2418,117) |
ASR 2 3,428,878 721,647 4,150,525 10,718,054 (6,567,529) |
|Screw Pump 58,215 108,399 166,614 4,736,000 (4,569,386)
Grand Total $ 10,895,930 §$ 8,176,623 $ 19,072,553 $ 37,182,875 $ (18,110,322)

Misc. Admin, Preliminary Construction
Esmt, Legal, Etc. Engineering Engineering Construction

Construction

Projects Expenses Contract Contract Contract C/O Contracts Project Total
LOM Booster Pump $ 150 $ 197,000 $ 140,000 $ 1,999,807 $ 1,465 $ 2,338,422
Water Supply Planning 226,126 - - - - 226,126
RO Plant Expansion - 693,000 1,026,000 10,523,000 64,559 12,306,559
RO Wells 26,005 401,000 799,450 5,857,385 - 7,083,840
ASR 2 38,116 723,000 860,550 9,096,388 - 10,718,054
Screw Pumps - 178,000 188,000 4,370,000 - 4,736,000
Total $ 290,396 $ 2,192,000 $ 3,014,000 $ 31,846,580 $ 66,024 $ 37,409,000
External Funding Sources

SRF Loan, net (252,796) (1,823,204) (296,429) - - (2,372,429)
SCIIP Grant - - - (10,000,000) - (10,000,000)
BC ARPA - - - (1,000,000) - (1,000,000)
SC RIA Grant - - - (1,500,000) - (1,500,000)
Net of Grants/SRF $ 37,600 $ 368,796 $ 2,717,571 $ 19,346,580 $ 66,024 $ 22,536,571
2024B Bond Proceeds, net of closing costs (20,268,791) J
2024B Bond Proceeds Interest Income through 12/31/25 (953,380) |
Remaining local match to be funded via interest income and cash $ 1,314,400



Statement of Cash Flow

The cash flow statement presents cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.
The statement of cash flows provides the preparers and users of the statements the following:

v

v
v

ANANIN

Enables the assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty surrounding future cash
flows.

Furnishes reconciliation between net income and cash flows from operations.

Indicates the impact on the District’s financial status of its investing, debt, and financing
transactions.

Provides information about the District’s cash receipts and cash payments for the period.
Provides the change in cash and cash equivalents for the period.

Ties to page 4, Statements of Net Position under current assets and restricted assets.

Unrestricted cash available for operations increased $2,297,454 from $15,873,800 as of June 30,
2025 to $18,171,254 as of December 31, 2025. This is mostly expected to be timing related as the
District completes its current year CIP projects and finalizes the grant/debt funded projects.

Restricted cash in banks for debt service has increased $938,518 from $620,219 as of June 30,
2025, to $1,558,737 as of December 31, 2025, in accordance with revenue debt payment activity.

Restricted cash held at the SC Local Government Investment Pool has decreased $2,056,556 from
$18,587,904 as of June 30, 2025, to $16,531,348 as of December 31, 2025, due to construction
payments from the 2024B bond proceeds account.

Restricted cash held by Beaufort County has increased $556,602 from $805,891 on June 30, 2025,
to $1,362,493 as of December 31, 2025, in accordance with GO debt activity.

Total combined unrestricted and restricted cash has decreased $1,736,018 since June 30, 2025.



TABLE A-4

Hilton Head PSD
Statement of Cash Flows
December 31 June 30
2025 2025
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers 8,983,030 $ 16,329,803
Cash Paid to Suppliers (5,396,234)  (10,415,342)
Cash Paid to Employees (1,580,397) (2,919,547)
Other Revenues 24,402 49,577
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,030,801 3,044,491
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income 774,946 1,440,962
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 774,946 1,440,962
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Property Taxes Collected - Operations Levy 558,916 1,372,970
Sewer Assessments Collected 66,059 143,460
Sewer Assessments Financed (140,645) (62,871)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 484,330 1,453,559
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capacity Fees 516,418 170,944
Capacity Fee Assessments 28,048 64,364
Property Taxes Collected - G.O. Debt Levy 882,050 1,877,746
Interest Paid (491,627) (627,003)
Proceeds from Series 2024A GO SRF Loan - 2,589,929
Proceeds from Series 2024B GO Bonds - 20,400,000
Bond Issuance Costs - (175,243)
Principal Payments on Financed Purchase, Bonds and Notes (125,231) (3,641,308)
Rental and Tower Lease Income 461,032 737,165
Proceeds from Capital Grant 6,285,638 2,255,991
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment B 48,559
Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment (9,110,387) (9,958,173)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,554,059) 13,743,471
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 1,736,018 19,682,483
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 35,887,814 $ 16,205,331
37,623,832 § 35,887,814

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

10



TABLE A-4

Hilton Head PSD
Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided December 31 June 30
by Operating Activities: 2025 2025
Operating Income (Loss) $ (758,048) $ (2,385,468)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 2,750,217 5,420,424
Decrease in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - -
Difference Between GASB 68 and Actual Contributions - (201,754)
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Accounts Receivable - Trade 146,954 71,748
Accounts Receivable - Project SAFE (8,821) 108,704
Inventories 121,396 (87,236)
Prepaid Assets (207,824) (74,198)
Accounts Payable - Trade 21,496 113,329
Customer Deposits (1,248) 41,332
Accrued Payroll & Other Liabilities (33,321) 37,610
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,030,801 $§ 3,044,491

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Available for Operations

Demand Deposits (interest and non-interest bearing) $ 1,742,392 $§ 1,475,132
Certificate of Deposit Cash Equivalent 3,000,000 3,000,000
SC Local Government Investment Pool 12,843,130 11,311,985
Held by Beaufort County Treasurer 585,732 86,683
Total Available for Operations $ 18,171,254 $ 15,873,800
Restricted

Cash in Banks $ 1,558,737 $ 620,219
SC Local Government Investment Pool 16,531,348 18,587,904
Held by Beaufort County Treasurer 1,362,493 805,891
Total Restricted $ 19,452,578 $§ 20,014,014
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 37,623,832 § 35,887,814

Supplemental Disclosures
Noncash Financing Activities:
Developer Contribution of Systems $ - $ 222,500

11



Financial Ratio Analysis

The analysis of financial statement ratios can be a useful tool when evaluating the financial
performance of a business entity. Specifically, ratio analysis can identify a business’s strengths
and weaknesses.

The following table contains ratio benchmarks as determined by the District’s financial advisors
and the District’s financial ratios for the current fiscal year, prior fiscal year to date, and the end
of the past fiscal year. The ratios examined below are some of the metrics most commonly
examined by the District’s rating agencies.

Financial Ratios
December December June
Benchmarks Dec 2025 to Dec 2024 2025 2024 2025
Current Ratio >6.00 Benchmark Met 12.22 13.27 11.10
Operating Ratio <0.60 Benchmark not met 0.80 0.81 0.81
Days Cash on Hand >120 Benchmark Met 500 472 442
Accounts Receivable (days of revenue) <35 Benchmark Met 22 21 25
Long-Term Debt to Net Position <0.75 Benchmark Met 0.46 0.61 0.51
Debt Coverage Ratio Projection >150% Complies with Bond Convenants 295% 245% 274%

Liquidity Ratios

Liquidity ratios indicate the ability of a company to meet current financial obligations as they
become due. As calculated in this section, a higher ratio indicates more of an ability to meet these
obligations.

The Current Ratio

The Current Ratio (current non-restricted assets over current liabilities to be paid from non-
restricted assets) was 12.22 at December 31, 2025 which is greater than the benchmark of 6.0.
Current non-restricted assets increased by $1,329,003 and current liabilities to be paid from non-
restricted assets increased by $236,698 since December 31, 2024. The large increase in current
assets is mostly related to increases in unrestricted cash.

The Operating Ratio

The operating ratio, total operating expenses less depreciation to operating revenues, indicates a
company’s level of operating expenses in comparison to operating revenue. As calculated in this
section, a higher ratio indicates a higher level of expense in comparison to operating revenue. The
current operating ratio is 0.80 compared to the December 31, 2024 ratio of 0.81 and is higher than
the established benchmark of less than 0.60. Total operating expenses less depreciation increased
$518,795 while total operating revenues increased $735,857. While this benchmark has not been
met, any value less than 1.0 indicates that operating expenses less depreciation are being fully
covered by operating revenues. Movement towards the benchmark would allow more operating
funds on an annual basis to fund CIP projects.

12



Days Cash on Hand

The days cash on hand ratio measures how many days a company can pay its expenses. The
formula for this ratio is current unrestricted cash and investments plus any restricted cash and
investments available for general system purposes divided by operating expenditures minus
depreciation, divided by 365. A higher days of cash on hand ratio is more desirable as it indicates
that an entity has more cash to cover its expenses. The days cash on hand ratio exceeds its
benchmark and is 500 as of December 31, 2025, compared to 472 as of December 31, 2024. This
increase is expected to be partially timing related as the District carries out its CIP projects for FY
2026 and grant/debt funded projects.

The Accounts Receivable (Days of Revenue) Ratio

The Accounts Receivable (Days of Revenue) ratio indicates the level of accounts receivable in
comparison to the level of revenues being collected over a 12-month period (last 12 months or
LTM). As calculated in this section, a higher ratio may indicate that receivables are growing in
disproportion to revenues. The ratio is calculated by dividing accounts receivable by the average
days’ operating revenues.? This ratio was 22 at December 31, 2025 and 21 at December 31, 2024.
Both years meet the benchmark of lower than 35 and indicate that the District is carrying less than
one month’s worth of receivables which is in line with its monthly billing schedule.

Leverage Ratios

The following leverage ratio indicates how much debt the District has in relationship to its net
position. As calculated in this section, a higher ratio indicates a higher level of debt in comparison
to the net position.

The Long-term Debt to Net Position Ratio

The Long-term Debt to Net Position ratio, long term debt divided by the net position, is 0.46, has
decreased from the December 31, 2024, ratio of 0.61, and meets the benchmark of less than 0.75.
Long-term debt was decreased by $3,391,836 while the net position has increased by $13,328,562.

Debt Coverage

Bond covenants require that the District maintain and collect rates and charges that together with
income are reasonably expected to yield annual net earnings equal to at least the sum of one
hundred twenty percent (120%) of annual principal and interest requirements for all revenue bonds
outstanding. As of December 31, 2025, the debt service projection calculation is 295% which
exceeds the fiscal year 2026 budgeted debt coverage ratio of 256%, the required ratio of 120%,
and the target rate of 150%.

2 For purposes of this analysis, accounts receivable is defined as those trade receivables excluding extraordinary receivables, unbilled revenue,
tower lease revenue, and notes receivable. This ratio is derived using the LTM revenues.



Customer Growth

Total water/irrigation service EDUs have increased by 62 since June 30, 2025, for a total of 19,988
EDUs. This is a 0.31% increase for fiscal year 2026 compared to the 0.37% increase experienced
during the first half of last fiscal year. The current EDUs include 18,863 water service units, 1,037
irrigation service units, and 88 miscellaneous water units such as dock meters, hydrants, pool
meters, and golf course water coolers.

Water / Sewer Connection Growth 12/31/2026
Water & Trr. Only Water  Change in Sewer Change in % Sewer to
Date EDU's EDU's Water EDU's EDU's Sewer EDU's Water EDU's
06/30/24 19,926 18,805 N/A 18,049 N/A 95.98%
09/30/25 19,963 18,839 37 18,084 35 95.99%
12/31/25 19,988 18,863 25 18,120 36 96.06%
Change in EDU's 2 2

Sewer service EDUs have increased by 71 since June 30, 2025, for a total of 18,120 EDUs. This
is a 0.39% increase for fiscal year 2026 compared to 0.50% for the first half of fiscal year 2025.
As shown in the above table, the sewer to water customer percentage has increased to 96.06%.

Fiscal Outlook
As of December 31, 2025, the District’s financial condition is stable.

Staff looks forward to discussing the second quarter fiscal year 2026 review of the District’s
financial condition at the February 25, 2026, Commission Meeting.

14



Financial Ratio
"' Benchmark Analysis




920¢ Aenuer {iewyouag oljey |eioueul

1oulsIq mo_Emw u__n_:n_ pesaH uoljiH

JONVNI4d D217dNd 9NI Td NI S

SJI0SIAPY UOA h U,m\__u_




z SI0SIAPY UOAI] 3Su14 VNA

S'®M A1unog 3iox

B B XOt'T 0.2 - cr SPM BIqUIN|0D 3S3M 40 A1D
... X0 . 0ST . SEMIsWNS 0 A0
S .o . Jelep uedung plojj|ap UOSHIB[ XaLIE)S
YN X1 VYWN o0sT YN YN S®M 3inquepeds jo A1)
S g9 081 - - ~ 1UIsIq 82IMBS d1[gNnd PUBls| Yinos
- - - Gog - 081 . 00O¢ - - S®M Aunog puejyory
S N AR A 002 . s3myoesgauhn jo 3The)
B Y/N X002 Y/N 00S - VIN Y/N S'PM JUBSED|d JUNOJN JO UMOL
- ) ) S®M Julor A&uno) :o%c_xm._

S M - e  S'8MU0JBuIXa7 Jo UMOL
- S®M suwjed Jo 3|s] 40 A}19

7 XEEE ., o RS o 090 ~ 1PUISIq 39IM8S 91 |qNd PesH Uo}iH
WN X1 ¥N - Gog V/N ‘ UIN . S®M 3lIIAUS3ID) J0 AND

o - . ‘ - ~ Ruouyiny $M pueis puein
VN B -1 ‘ 0ST VN VN S'8M 0U310|4 J0 A}19

S¥M eiquinjo) Jo Al

e ] ~ Semuoisaliey) jo Ay

B_:m_o 82IMI3S 21|qNnd ¥331) peolg
o = - = ————— - E N o - asldialug
- - S \\:owH S 0ct Aupmn psulquog Ajuno) Asjaylag

VN X621 ~ 0se ogt oz oz ~ Ruoyiny Sem Jadser-}iojnesg

X0E'T ) - , S'®M 1uior Aunog uosiapuy

gee — — S7/M UOSISpuy J0 JSThe)
oljey juaung oney sunesadQ waysAs AN

co;_mon_ . mz \Emn_ a8elano) ~ Ad1j0d |ewoyu] K2110d |ew.io4

92IAISS 193 pueH uo ysey ,sAeq pueH uo ysey ,shkeqg

swalsAg AN euljoie) ynos 1oj syasie] / saidljod



SIOSIAPY UOAI] 3414 VMA

*Uo pasnao} >=m‘_m=ow yJewyouaq e jou si } se Suijeuiwi|s
10 [9A3] disl|eal aiow e Je yiewyousq siyj 3ulpas Joyls puswwodal pinom sp “siead s} JO 1SOW Ym auj| uj Si 3nq “YJewyduaq s 399 jou Saop JouIsigayl -

SUpNY ‘Y4 S Apooyy 82008 90 S®M elquinjo] 1S9 Jo Ao

01 Jajep\ UedUNQ PIOJ[BM UOSHIBS Xa1IelS - 0 wqg‘#:mmmm_n_ JUNO Jo umoy

I ~ sumuyoesg oA J0 A0 o ~ s’Mequn|og o fu)
- e0 ) dSd 9319 peoig . so  semeouao{jo )
80 ey y ~aSd pesH uoyiH g0 S¥M UosIapuy jo A9

10 S®M Sinquepneds o A1) G0 SIM E_o_, fjuno) uojduixe

90 -~ asudieug AN pauiquo) funo) Asjaxieg - es0 - - mm\n_ pue|s| yinos
90 - STPM JaJWNS Jo AQ . so0o  sB®muosauey) oA
90  Ruouyny smiadser-Hiopneag ~.so  S®MSWed J03Is| J0 A9
90 S’¥M 3lIIAUDID Jo AND . so  s3mAunoy>op
90  Ruoyiny M pueis puess . so  semAunogpueydry

90 ~ S’PM U0I3UIXST JO UMOL S0 S®M JuI0r A3uno) uosiapuy

onjey Sunesadg waysAs Apnn
eleq Joed -

1870 ‘UNs3Y G20¢C Ad ASdHH =

9°0 HJewyousg qSdHH

"yjleay Suizetado Suouis Jo JO}edipul ue s| oljel Jamo|
"s1s09 3uljelado s} J8A09 ued sanusAal Suljelado s,waisAs e yoiym o3 Ajijiqe 3y} sajedipul onjes siyy -

"senuanay 3urjesadQ |10l Aq sesuadxg aoueusiule|y pue SuijeladQ [e101 8yl SUIpIAIP Aq paje[nojes si oijey Sunjesadg ay| -

oljey SuijesadQ



SIOSIARY UOAI] 3sdi4 VKA

*s19ad s}I pue yiewysuaq sH swiopadino ouisiq ayl -

supny ‘vy4N S.Apooyy :821n0s 101 3:05“_:4\ muw>>\_mamm—. utou:\_mmm

6370 13Je\ UBDUNQ PIOJ[SM UOSHOBS X31IElS 8y s3meiqunjodjo A
99T SBMIu0rAunog uosispuy . 88¥  SBMU0ISeeYD 4o Ay
LTz SB¥MUOsI9pUY 0 A . vos S8M UOIBUIXST 4O UMOL
- ez2z ~ SM Yyoeag ajuA Jo A1) 8G'G mm:n:mzcm b__;: pauiqwo) Ajunod Asjayiag
¥z SBM3Iuesesld Junoj 4o umo] 296 SBM 3I11AU2I9 J0 KD
€/L2 S®M Blquinjo) 1sem Jo A1) s ~ S®Muior Aunod uojduixaT

. o0¢  dSdPpues|ynos . vT9 ‘ ~ Ruoyiny s3m puens pueln

-~ gre¢ S®M AJUN0Q 3I0A w9 - ~ s%mAwno) puejyary
“““ 1ee ~ S’BM®0udI0l4jo AND ~ gs8 ~ S}Msuwiedjoels|jofu)
&ge  szmiswnsjohun 658 ‘ ~ QSd>e@i) peaig
68 ‘; S'®M 8inquepieds Jo A1 Or'LT aSd PesH uolH

oney Juaung

oljey using . ‘ waysAs Ajpn

‘ejeq iead =
OT'TT *HNs8y G20¢C Ad ASdHH =

0079 Hfewyousg ASdHH

"Yiesy 3unjesado 3uouis 4o J03e2IpUl UE S| oljel Jaydiy v
"SSI}[Iqel] JUS.LIND S} JOA0D UBIJ S}8SSE JUalINnd s, Wia)SAS e Yalym o} AJjIqe sy Saiedlpul oljed siy |

"saij|iger uaung Aq s1essy juaiing ay3 Sulpiaip AQ pale|nojes sl oijey Juaing ayy -

oljey jualing



SI0SIAPY UOAI] 1SJ14 VMA

"ejep Jsad ypim pue sajesado 31 19ym YHM dul] ul 210w a4 0} YJewyduaq syl Suisealou Japisuod Aew 1auysiq 3y -

sypny V4 S.Apooyy ‘821nos

S 10 S®MUydesgds|LAN jo Aug
1318\,

Ore €0e uesunq pJojIdM UosHoer xapels
. '8 ~ STRMUOSIBpUY 40 AD
. oor  e%€ SBM EIqUIN0Q 1S9M 40 A1)
- . we  SemIsungoAun
G6E S'®M julor bc:oo uosispuy

ozl ey ~ Sd PeaH uoyiH

i 0ST 8IS - wwgmhzncmu,._mamgu.\_o
I 3 - S'®M 89U10[4 J0 A1D
- 00s : B 1€§ B wqm>>pcmmmw_;n_mc:o§v,o umoj
LIS _ S®MSsuwied jo 3|s] jo b_o

sheq /> molag pue g

- skeqgr-shkea/, \ii;lmm
~ sfkegqge-skegqgT - eeg
- sheq 0GT-shegge Y
i ‘\m\mmn_ 0Sz- w>mm 0ST i ] ey
sheq 0Gz< eey

- .mm:mm.Iio|oo‘ - - Suney

(pueH uo yseg ,sAeq) ASojopoyiay Suney s,Apoopy

B ‘ 069 S®M A1UnoQ iox

8€L - SBM cBmExm._ Joumoj

st €8 - asd pueys yinos
\‘@N\Hi - 26 b:o&mi\wuw; anm?to?wg
W6 SB¥Mequnodjo I Tie)
g9¢ B mob# B ~ SBM3JliAusaly Jo ISTTe)
- moo.H ) dSd %8843 peo.lg
““““ It Auoyny S3Mm puens puein

i - ‘ reEET ~ S®Miuor fjuno) uojduixaT
; aslidisqug

c8el b__:: paulquo) bc:oo Aejoniag

. B mmm.H - i ~ S™®M uojssjieyy jo I5T5)
;n.wmﬁ ~ S®M Auno) PUEYaIy

uo yse9 sheqg

‘ejeq Jeed -
¢hv UNS3Y G202 Ad ASdHH -

0¢T dewyouag qSdHH
"UYileay Suijesado Suoujs Jo Jojedlpul ue si aindiy 1sysiy v

"suoljelado puny ued uoljisod yseo 8y} Juaind Suo| moy — wajsAs ayy Jo Alpinbi| sy) sajedlpul aun3diy sy -

(G9g / sesuadx3 BunjesadQ) / YseQ palouIsalu) :SMOj|0} Se Pale|najes S pueH Uo yse sfeq -

pueH uo ysen sAeq



SIOSIAPY UOAI] 3Sd14 VMA

"dnoJ3 19ad s}l 1o} ueIpawW 8y} punoJe si pue yJewysuaq sy suopadino 1ousig syl -

SJUBUIB)L)S [eIdURUlS PBYPNY 80IN0S

6LT o dsd Puejs| yinos
o orT B ~ S’BMeEIquinod Jo A9
. ver _ S®Muosispuyjo g
gt ~ semAwnog puejyory
960 - S'$M Binquepeds jo AnQ

880 w.m>> julor AJuno) uosiapuy

o0 B ~ S'PM 32U310]4 0 A}
90 S’PM U03saliey jo A9
990 o _ S'3M BIGWINIOY 3S9M 4O A1D
09°0 S'PM U03BUIXa JO UMoL

150 ‘ O, -dSd PesH uoyiH

uonisod 19N/A92d waysAs AN

~ UOINSOd 13N/393d

190 o ] S'®M yoeag s|LAN R Tre)
ero - - ~ S®M J3jns jo IS Tie)
&0 S3MIUEsesid Junopy o umoj
00 ~ Jegep ueoung PI0J||o UOSYOB XBHRIS
820 - - ~ S’8M uIor Auno) ﬁ_m%mc_xm._

.~ teo ~ S®M Suljed J0 3Is] Jo I5The)
120 om:EmEm AN pauiquio) Aluno) Asjexiag

-~ 9z0 Aoy Sem Lmamm_.-to?mom
 wzo o ~ Rwoyny M puens pues
_geo  asdisiypeog
~oro0 ) - ~ $%M Aaunog spiox
£€0°0 - ~ S®MallusaIn Jo A

ejeq Joad -
TG0 *HNSdY G202 Ad ASdHH -
G/°0 Mlewysusg qSdHH -

"yieay Sunjesado Suouls Jo J03e3IpUl UE S| 011 J13MO| Y

"uonisod |eloueUly |[eI9A0 S} O} UOIIE[a. Ul S31LIBD Wa]SAS B 1G9p JO [9A3] 8Y} S8}1BDIpUI UOINISOd 19N /199 -

"UOIHISOd 18N [e10L Ag (Syjuow gT Ulyum anp 3gap 40 Jau) 1qa@ wus -8uo Sulplalp Aq paje|najed si uoisod 18N /1990

uonisod 18N /19°@



n SI0SIAPY UOAL] 3sJ14 VI)\A

"dnoJs 193ad s}l Joj UBIpaW 8y} punoJe si pue yJewysuaq sy swiopadino Jousig oyl -

Supny Vo4 S Apooy :92n0s X062 S®M ucmmmm_n_ uc:oS_ 10 UMO|

X0  Semydesag AN o Au) ~ xge S’®M J33NS 4o AY
XO%'T - ~ S™®M ulor Ajuno uosiapuy -  X0S'€E - - mum\s coﬁmExm._ Jo umog

X002 SM m\_:n_cmtmaw jo Ao X09'€ Auoyiny Sm Jadser- Hojnesg
X002  S3MUOsIspuy 0 Ay . Xevy  Ruoyny Sm pueis puesn
x0T ‘ ~S’®M elquinjo Jo A9 X087 ] - - S8M Swied 40 3Is] 40 A4
. Xtgg  asdpues|ymos ~ X06§ ~ S’3Muor Aunog uojBuixe
~xo¥T  S3Ma3dualodjohug X06'8 . asdeei]peoig
X0s7¢ S®M AUnog puelyary . Xo¢er _ ielep uedung pJojj[op UOSHOer Xojiels
x0T S®M UO3salIey Jo A9 - oxs/t ~ S¥MAuUnod>pop
Xt/°2 “o_bm_o ERINELS dl|qnd peaH uoljiH X0¥'12 'S 3l1AuDa1E) 10 A0

X06'C wum>> BIGWIN|0] 1S9 JO I3 Tre) X00°0S mm_ahﬁcu b__;: Umc_n_Eoo bc:oo >m_mv_‘_mm

age1an0) 921AI9S 198 ‘waysAs Aynn

ageIano0) ad1MSS 193q

‘ejeg Joed -

Xp/ ¢ ‘UNS3Y G20¢ A4 ASdHH

XQG'T Hewyousg ASdHH -
"19°p |euollippe plojje 01 AJijige Sy} Se ||am se 80IAIaS 1qap Sulsixe Aedal 0] A)ijige a3 40 J03edipul Ue Si oljes JaysSiy v
"Aique ue Jo yi3uad)s [efoueuly Y} aunseaw 0} "038 ‘selousde Suijel ‘s101seAul ‘saljjud AQ pasn AjuoWwWoD S| oley a8eIeA0D) 92IAISS 199(

"@JIAI3S 1g3p |enuue >Q 9JIAJSS 1g9p 10] 3|gejieAe SanuaAal }au MC_U_ZU Aq pajle|na|ed si oljey mmm._®>oo QJIAIBS 19 -

onzey aSelano) adiAles 1gad



'Spoyjawl 3ul)|as 1o sav130e.d SSaUISNg ,SI0SIAPY U0AL] 1Si14 S9ajueiens o ‘s wapul ‘sasiopua

uoijeziuesio Aiojejndal Jayzo Aue Jou ‘GYSIA ‘O3S dUl J3YlaN *(.GYSIN,,) Pieog Suiyewajny S331Na3g |edidIUn|y ay3 pue (,93S,,) Uoissiwwog a8ueyaxg pue saljinaas ayj yim JosiApe [ed[olunu e se palajsi3al S| SI0SIAPY UoAi] 3Si14

*Ula1ay pajew}sa asoy] Woly JayIp A(jeLaew Jou [[Im

s}nsal souewJopad [enjoe Jey} Jo pazijeal aq ||IM suoiosfoid pajewl}ss Jey} aoueinsse ou aq Uea alay) ‘A|SulpIoddy "SjusAa a.Miny |enjoe o349l ||Im suoiduinsse yons Aue jey) Jussaidal JoU S30pP SIOSIAPY UOAIL] 1S4 pUE ‘Sa)ewsa Jo

suoi3asfoud Aue jo uaije|nalea Jo/pue uonejussaid sy Ajdwis o3 Ajuo sasodind Suijspow 1o} spew U3ag aAey Aew suoidwnsse ulepag "SajeLNS3 0 suonaafold ayy 10aye Ajuediugis Aew pue Jnado Aew JUN0J2. OJUl USY .} 10U SJU3AD

Ja3y30 "aduew.opiad 1o suoljoafoid Aue uo Joedw jeliajew e aney Aew suopdwnsse Aue 0} Sa3UBYD PUB PSWNSSE 3s0U} woJj Jayip Aew sjuaA3 [enjoy “aouewiopad pajoadxa o SJUSA3 21n3ny JO 3AlEdIpUI A|LieSsadau jou aJe pajuasald
ejep pue suoluidg "38ueyo 03 303[qns os|e ale pue ‘anss Jo ajep 3y} 40 Se UoluIdo Jualin uodn paseq ale sjaxiew 3WoduI-paxiy Jo A1INb3 pue ‘spuai} 21Wou0o3 ‘AWou0Is 3y} ‘1axell 3y} o suoiaIpald Jo ‘suonaalosd ‘syseaalo} Auy

‘|el1ew siuy Jo Aseinooe ayy Suipledal saljueliem OU Sa)eW SIOSIAPY UOAL] 1Sii4 “33130u Inoyyim a3ueya o3 39alqns si uojjewoyu) siyl pue ‘pasedaid sem uoljeajunwwos
SIU41 W1 8y} 1e sI0SIAPY UOAI| 3sil4 0} UMOUY UOIeLLIOLU S}I3|4a) Pajuasald [elajew 3y Uoleaiuntwwod sy} Uiyyim papiacid uonewWIojul 8y} Jo ssausle|dwod 4o Adeindde ay} 8sjueiens Jou S30p } “UaAsmoy ‘a|qel|al SIpIsuod
w_mmuSomEocEmuﬂ_ﬂmﬁmmmam;gcob.:mi.muzocSoﬁ_\swm:m:oo:um._n:mm‘_mu:mco_SnEm_EomEzmcim mSm_>u<co>._.Cm‘_EhoEmEmu:_ucmmzﬁmaﬂmn,waw;mﬁBazmcou_mcﬁm

W SIUT UIY3IMm SJUBWSeIs ay |

"SIOSIAPY UOAL] 35114 4O JUSSUOD USYILIM Jolid 8U3 JNOYRIM UoSIad JaL30 AUE 0] UOIIEIIUNWILIOD
SIY3 J3AI[3p o piemIo} ‘33nqLiIsIpal [|3s 0} paziioyine Jou (aie) si (s)juaidioal auyy pue ‘(s)iusidioal ayj JO JJaUag U} 4o} AJ3|0S SI pUB SI0SIAPY UOAL] 3Sii4 J0 co:mE‘_oE__m:cmuccouw_co:mu_c:EEoum_Ec_Uwu:_oc:mmoaoa>c<

“uonoesue} pasodoud 40 ‘saouanbasuod pue soislieioeleyd Suljunodde pue ‘Aioje|nSas ‘xe) ‘[eSs| sy} Se ||am e ‘SHaU PUE SYSL J1W0U0I3 3U} ‘siosiApe
3uiunodJe pue Aloje[nal ‘xej} ‘33| ‘JUSLUISIAUI UMO JISY} YIIM UOIIR}NSU0D Ul ‘3Ullia}ap pinoys sjuaidioal ‘uoioesuel

| } pasodoud Aue ojul 3uisjua 03 Jolid "33IAPE |eS3| Jo ‘Suizunodae ‘Alojengal ‘xe} apiaoid Jou saop [eliajew
SIYL "ssiun23s Aue Ang 1o ||3S 0} UOI3E}IDI0S J0 J8}40 UE Se PanJsuod aq JoU pjnoys pue Ajuo sssodind [euoiewWIoMI 10} sl pue (,s10sIApY UOALL 3s114,,) 977 ‘SI0SIAPY UOAI] Isui4 Aq paledaid sem Uoie3alunwiwoa sy NMIWIVIOSIA

JuelisiSay gYS

INOO'NOAYLLSHI4" MMM

dJONVNILd D2179Nd O9NIAdITAdINIS

N
D

SJIOSINPY UOA| 1S4




S.C. Critical Infrastructure
— Cybersecurity Program

"MOA




COMMISSIONERS EXECUTIVE STAFF
Frank Turano, Chair J. Pete Nardi, General Manager

Jerry Cutrer, Vice-Chair 1 PSD Amy Graybill, Finance Manager
H'ltonHead William C. Davis, Operations Manager

Stuart Bell, Treasurer
Patti Soltys, Secretary Srtimtn
Andy Paterno N

Ibrahim Abdul-Malik
Michael Marks

HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT

To: Hilton Head PSD Commission
From: Pete Nardi, General Manager

Re: Memorandum of Agreement for Participation in the S.C. Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity Program
February 17, 2026

Dear Commissioners:

The PSD is committed to safeguarding against cyber threats. As such threats continue to increase in frequency
and sophistication, it is imperative that we strengthen our cybersecurity posture through strategic
partnerships, shared resources, and statewide coordination.

The S.C. Law Enforcement Division (SLED) South Carolina Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity (CIC) Program
has developed both threat intelligence and training opportunities and is seeking participating organizations.
The program provides situational awareness, access to expert assessments, and enhances threat response

capabilities.

Please see attached MOA for consideration at the February Commission meeting. Staff believes the PSD can
both contribute to and benefit from this coordinated statewide approach that elevates cybersecurity
readiness across all participating organizations.

Best regards,

e

Pete Nardi
General Manager
Hilton Head Public Service District

Administration 843-681-5525 21 Oak Park Drive www.hhpsd.com
P.O. Box 21264 FAX 843-681-5052

Hilton Head Island, SC 29925



SOUTH CAROLINA CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE CYBERSECURITY PROGRAM
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT — PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION

The South Carolina Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity (SC CIC) Program Task Force operating
out of the South Carolina Law Enforcement Division (“SLED”) located at 4400 Broad River Road,
Columbia, SC and  Hilton Head Public Service District (PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION),
located at 21 Oak Park Drive. Hilton Head Island, SC 29926  enter into this Memorandum of Agreement
(“MOA”) as the parties hereto, for collaborative efforts involving the SC CIC Program.

WHEREAS, South Carolina Governor Henry McMaster has issued Executive Order 2017-
08 mandating that South Carolina protect its critical infrastructure from sophisticated cyber threats
in order to maintain the stability of South Carolina’s economic and commercial activity and to
ensure the health, safety, and well-being of South Carolina citizens.

WHEREAS, Executive Order 2017-08 also acknowledged that facilitating collaboration
among State and Federal government agencies and public-sector and private-sector organizations
will aid the State in protecting critical infrastructure from sophisticated cyber threats.

WHEREAS, SLED has been tasked with oversight and control of the SC CIC Program,
which will collect, analyze, investigate, disseminate, and provide cybersecurity services, products,
and intelligence pertaining to cyber threats to public and private critical infrastructure assets and
resources in South Carolina in an effort to enhance the cybersecurity posture throughout the state
by collaboration and coordination with task force partners and participating organizations, and

other purposes specified herein.

WHEREAS, the PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION is either a State or Federal
government agency, a public-sector organization, or a private-sector organization that is a part of
the critical infrastructure in the State of South Carolina or that provides essential services to South
Carolina residents or businesses; and seeks to participate in the SC CIC Program and receive
resources and services therefrom in a collaborative effort

Therefore, the parties to this MOA desire to enter into this formal, mutually beneficial
agreement to participate in the SC CIC Program and agree to the following:

SECTION 1 —SC CIC PROGRAM TASK FORCE COMMITMENT




The SC CIC Program Task Force (“Task Force™) will operate out of SLED and will provide
cybersecurity services, products, information, and intelligence pertaining to cyber threats
and events in support of PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION in such manner that the Task
Force, in coordination with PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION determines appropriate.

The Task Force will provide and utilize as much SLED personnel or SC CIC participants
as the Task Force, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate to assist PARTICIPANT
ORGANIZATION in this regard.

Neither the Task Force, SLED, nor the SC CIC Program assumes any responsibility or
liability for any kind for a security breach and does not warrant or guarantee that
PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION or PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION’S network or
infrastructure will not sustain a cyber-intrusion or a breach.

Neither the Task Force, SLED, nor the SC CIC Program make any express or implied
warranties as to any matter whatsoever.

The Task Force’s performance obligations for any succeeding fiscal period shall be subject
to the availability and appropriation of funds. When funds are not appropriated or otherwise
made available to support continued performance in a subsequent fiscal period, the Task
Force will provide as much notice as is possible under the circumstances and this MOA
will be deemed cancelled.

Neither the Task Force, SLED, nor the SC CIC Program assumes any responsibility for
making any notification required by applicable state or federal law regarding any breach
of the security of the system of PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION.

SECTION 2 — PARTICIPATION ORGANIZATION COMMITMENT

1.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION agrees to participate in and collaborate with the SC
CIC Program pursuant to the terms and conditions of this MOA.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION acknowledges that in order for the Task Force to assist
PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION pursuant to this MOA, the Task Force needs as timely
and accurate information about PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION’s critical resources and
PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION’s cyber infrastructure as circumstances allow, and
PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION hereby agrees to provide such information in such
manner that PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION, in its sole discretion, determines
appropriate.

. PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION acknowledges that its full and complete cooperation

is essential to the performance of this MOA and agrees that its personnel will fully
cooperate with the Task Force regarding such on a continuous basis in such manner that
PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION, in its sole discretion, determines appropriate.



10.

11.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION agrees to designate at least one employee as a Cyber
Liaison Officer (CLO) to the SC CIC Program to participate in a capacity as determined
by the Parties in conjunction with the SC CIC Program’s operations plan concerning CLOs.

If applicable, PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION’s performance obligations for any
succeeding fiscal period shall be subject to the availability and appropriation of funds.
When funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continued
performance in a subsequent fiscal period, PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION will
provide as much notice as is possible under the circumstances and this MOA will be

deemed cancelled.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION acknowledges that the Task Force’s limited assistance
set forth in this MOA is not, in and of itself, sufficient cyber infrastructure protection and
this MOA shall not relieve the PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION from its responsibility
to protect its cyber infrastructure and its network(s) from intrusion pursuant to applicable

law.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION acknowledges and agrees that neither the Task Force,
SLED, nor the SC CIC Program has any liability of any kind for any breach of the security
of the system of PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION’s cyber infrastructure and
acknowledges that the Task Force, SLED, nor the SC CIC Program do not warrant or
guarantee  that ~ PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION or PARTICIPANT

ORGANIZATION’s network will not sustain a security breach.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION acknowledges and agrees that it will comply with all
applicable state and federal laws and regulations regarding notification of any breach of
the security of its network and relieves the Task Force, SLED, and the SC CIC Program of
any obligation for the same, regardless of the Task Force, SLED, nor the SC CIC Program’s
duties and responsibilities set forth herein.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION acknowledges and agrees that no cybersecurity or
cyber protection is foolproof, and that any resources or assistance provided pursuant to this
MOA are not intended to replace insurance. PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION agrees
and acknowledges that the Task Force, SLED, nor the SC CIC Program are not in any way
an insurer of PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION’s resources, personnel, or premises

against loss or damage.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION agrees and acknowledges that there are no warranties
of any kind attached to or associated with this MOA and that any affirmation or fact or
promise made by the Task Force, SLED, or the SC CIC Program shall not be deemed to

create an express warranty of any kind.

PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION agrees and acknowledges to fully and completely hold
the Task Force, SLED, SLED employees, and the SC CIC Program harmless for any loss
of any kind that may arise regarding actions taken by either Party to facilitate this MOA so
long as such actions are in compliance with applicable law and consistent with and



undertaken in good faith to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. However,
notwithstanding the above, this provision does not apply to a PARTICIPANT
ORGANIZATION that is a political subdivision or governmental entity that is prohibited
from such actions.

SECTION 3 — AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

1.

This MOA shall continue in full force until modified or terminated. However, this MOA
may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the parties and the execution of a
corresponding written agreement.

This MOA may be terminated for any reason by either of the parties upon written notice;
however, the parties agree to provide 30 days® prior notice of the intent to terminate, if
possible.

Notwithstanding the termination of this MOA, any party that discloses information
pursuant to this MOA shall continue to have the right to enforce this MOA and the
receiving party’s obligations of confidentiality and limited use will survive to the fullest
extent allowed by law after termination of this MOA for any reason.

SECTION 4 — GENERAL PROVISIONS

The parties hereby agree to each of the following:

A. That all records regarding this MOA shall be maintained in accordance with federal and/or

state requirements.

That all records maintained in accordance with this MOA shall be deemed confidential and
shall not be made available to anyone, including employees of either Party, except on a
need-to-know basis as determined by the Parties. The Parties also agree that all records and
activities associated with this MOA are “[i]nformation relating to security plans and
devices proposed, adopted, installed, or utilized by a public body... [and] is required to be
closed to the public and is not considered to be made open to the public” pursuant to the
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act (“SCFOIA”); See S.C. Code Ann. § 30-4-
20(c). The Parties further agree that the records produced Program are also exempt from
production under the SCFOIA pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 30-4-40 and its subsections.
Further, the Parties agree that no information shared pursuant to this MOA shall be
disseminated without the express written consent of the other Party, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld absent a court order or specific legal requirement for such.

When sharing information in furtherance of the purposes of this Agreement, the Parties
agree that they shall, to the fullest extent practicable, request and/or share information in a
manner sufficient to receive the protections available under the Cybersecurity Information
Sharing act of 2015, 6 U.S.C. § 1501 et seq. (“CISA”) for the protection of information
shared. Accordingly, information shared between Parties will be shared in furtherance of
a “cybersecurity purpose” as defined in 6 U.S.C. § 1501(4) and will only include



information regarding “cyber threat indicators” as defined in 6 U.S.C. § 1501(6) and
“defensive measures” as defined in 6 U.S.C. § 1501(7). Further, before sharing such
information, the Party providing the information will, consistent with 6 U.S.C. §
1503(d)(2), remove through manual or technical means any information not directly related
to a cybersecurity threat that the Party knows at the time to be personal information
regarding a specific person or information identifying a specific person. Any Party
receiving such information under this Agreement shall implement and utilize a security
control to protect against unauthorized access to or acquisition of such information
consistent with 6 U.S.C. § 1503(d)(1) and shall also implement any and all confidentiality
protections the Parties agree are sufficient to satisfy any obligation to comply with lawful
restrictions on the disclosure of information under 6 U.S.C. § 1503(c)(2). Any Party sharing
information under this Agreement retains the right to claim and assert the protections
available under CISA for the protection of the shared information as “cyber threat
indicators” or “defensive measures” regardless of the actions of the Party receiving such
information, and the Party receiving under this agreement shall support any such claims by
the Party asserting such claims.

. That performance of any aspect of this MOA by employees of PARTICIPANT

ORGANIZATION does not constitute employment at SLED nor does performance of any
aspect of this MOA by employees of SLED constitute employment at PARTICIPANT

ORGANIZATION.

. That this MOA is not an obligation or commitment of funds, nor a basis for transfer of

funds, but rather is a basic statement of the understanding between the Parties to commit
resources to SC CIC. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, each Party shall bear its own
costs in relation to this MOA, including but not limited to payment of salaries, overtime,
and per diem. Expenditures by each Party will be subject to such Party’s own budgetary
processes and to the availability of funds and resources, pursuant to applicable laws,
regulations, and policies.

. That each Party to this MOA agrees to assume its own liability and responsibility for the

acts, omission, or conduct of such Party’s own employees in relation to this MOA and
subject to other relevant state and federal law.

. That each party certifies compliance with the Drug-free Workplace Act, as set forth in S.C.

Code Ann. § 44-107-10, et. seq.

. That each Party agrees to fully comply with applicable provisions of the South Carolina

Ethics Act as set forth in Chapter 13 of Title 8 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as
amended.

That each Party certifies that it will comply with all the applicable requirements of Title 8,
Chapter 14 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, relating to illegal

immigration.



J. That neither Party shall assign this contract, or its rights, obligations or any other interest

arising from this contract, or delegate any of its performance obligations without the
express written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

. That this MOA, any dispute, claim, or controversy relating to this MOA, and all the rights

and obligations of the parties shall, in all respects, be interpreted, construed, enforced, and
governed by and under the laws of the State of South Carolina, except its choice of law
rules.

. That any and all disputes, claims, or controversies relating to this MOA shall be resolved

exclusively by the appropriate Chief Procurement Officer in accordance with Title 11,
Chapter 35, Article 17 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, or in the absence of
Jurisdiction, only in the Court of Common Pleas for, or a federal court located in, Richland
County, State of South Carolina. PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION agrees that any act
by SLED or any SLED employee regarding this MOA is not a waiver of either SLED’s
sovereign immunity or SLED’s immunity under the Eleventh Amendment of the United
States Constitution.

. That PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION consents that any papers, notices, or process

necessary or proper for the initiation or continuation of any disputes, claims, or
controversies relating to this MOA; for any court action in connection therewith; or for the
entry of judgment on any award made, may be served on PARTICIPANT
ORGANIZATION by certified mail addressed to PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION at
the address provided below, via the email address designated herein by PARTICIPANT
ORGANIZATION, or by personal service or by any other manner that is permitted by law,
in or outside South Carolina. Notice by certified mail is deemed duly given upon deposit
in the United States mail.

. That upon termination of this MOA for any reason, the State of South Carolina, the Task

Force, and/or SLED shall have the right, upon demand, to obtain access to, and possession
of, all State properties, including, but not limited to, current copies of all State application
programs and necessary documentation, all data, files, intermediate materials and supplies
held by PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION provided, however, the PARTICIPANT
ORGANIZATION shall not be required to provide access to its computer systems and
networks without reasonable security controls agreed to in advance of any such access.

. That upon termination of this MOA, the Parties shall: (i) return all equipment to the

supplying organization and comply with all applicable SC CIC Program guidelines, and all
applicable state and federal laws, policies, or procedures and (i) return or destroy all
confidential information and records of the other Party. In the event PARTICIPANT
ORGANIZATION uses any equipment provided by the State of South Carolina, the Task
Force, and/or SLED the PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION shall be permitted a
reasonable period of time to remove any confidential information from the equipment prior
to its return.



SECTION 5 — CONTACTS

Participating Agency
CLO Contact Person:
Address:

Office Phone:
E-mail:

SLED SC CIC Program
Contact Person: Ryan Truskey
Address: P. O. Box 21398
Columbia, SC 29221

E-mail: rtruskey@sled.sc.gov

WHEREFORE, by signing below, the authorized representative of each Party agrees to abide by
the terms of this MOA and will commit to participating in the SC CIC Program under the terms

and conditions set forth herein.

Participating Organization

Hilton Head Public Service District

Organization Name

Signature of Authorized Representative

Pete Nardi / General Manager

Printed Name / Title

Date

SLED SC CIC Program

Signature of Authorized Representative

Date

Witness Signature

Witness Signature

Once completed, please email to clo@sled.sc.gov




General Manager’s
Monthly Report




To:

HiltonHead

SRty
e

Hilton Head PSD Commission

From: Pete Nardi, General Manager

Re:

PSD Updates

February 18, 2026

Dear Commissioners, please see below the following updates:

We are experiencing current demand of approximately 6 million gallons a day (mgd), which includes
Aquifer Storage & Recovery (ASR) recharge of 2 mgd.
S.C. Infrastructure Investment Program (SCIIP) Projects Update:
o RO Plant Expansion:
" |nstrumentation and controls work is ongoing.
= Plant startup being planned for April.
= Current RO Plant Expansion Project Finish Date: Nov. 2, 2026.
o RO Well #4:
= Well construction complete.
= Temporary pump installation will occur in order to test RO Plant at full 6-mgd capacity.
= Current RO Well #4 Finish Date: October 16, 2026.
o ASR Well #2:
= Production well drill rig is on site.
= Middle Floridan Aquifer monitoring well drilling under way.
= Current ASR #2 Finish Date: Dec. 9, 2027.
Joint letter sent in support of Utility Relocation Extension
o We circulated our letter of support (attached) for extension of the Utility Relocation Provision
(H.3768) to the Broad Creek and South Island Commissions, as well as our Hilton Head
representative on the BJWSA board, and it was signed by all. | sent it directly to State Sen. Tom
Davis as well as the clerk of the Beaufort County Delegation, who circulated it to all delegation
members. As of this writing, we still are awaiting dates for the Senate subcommittee hearings
on H.3768.
PSD IT team participates in Operation Palmetto Shield
o IT/GIS Manager Ryan Lewis and IT/GIS Technician Devin Hyatt participated in the S.C. Law
Enforcement Division (SLED) S.C. Critical Infrastructure Cybersecurity (CIC) Program’s
“Operation Palmetto Shield” this month. This was a tabletop exercise held on Hilton Head
Island simulating a statewide cybersecurity event. The event brought together multiple
agencies from public utilities and law enforcement to schools and hospitals. It promoted cross-
agency collaboration and the ongoing need to strengthen protection of informational
technology and operational technology. SLED’s development of the CIC now offers multiple
benefits for partnering organizations, particularly in threat intelligence and training, and PSD
would like to execute the necessary MOA. See item VI. on this month’s agenda.



e Hughes is Certified Government Finance Officer
o Assistant Finance Manager Angie Hughes is now a Certified Government Finance Officer
through the S.C. Government Finance Officers Association. The certification involves passing 10
examinations and completing coursework in areas such as Financial Planning & Budgeting,
Capital Planning & Forecasting, Financial Reporting & Auditing, and Governmental Accounting.
A big congrats to Angie! A news release will be sent.
e Island PSDs Interconnection Study
o Engineers from Ardurra in January presented the results of their “Regional Infrastructure
Connectivity Study” that was performed for Broad Creek PSD. The study includes
recommendations for making drinking water transmission connections so that Broad Creek
could send water to Hilton Head PSD and South Island PSD, and for South Island PSD to send
water to Broad Creek PSD. Several projects initially appear to be feasible, while others are more
challenging. See attached PowerPoint.
e AWWA-American Membrane Technology Conference
o Pete Nardi and Water Treatment Supervisor Tim Ryan attended the AWWA-American
Membrane Technology Conference this month. Sessions covered membrane treatment of
wastewater, including for potential Indirect Potable Reuse/aquifer recharge/saltwater barrier;
high-recovery membrane systems, including “Closed Circuit Reverse Osmosis,” where a post-
treatment RO system captures more water from the concentrate (brine); project pilots;
machine-learning for RO system maintenance planning; innovations in seawater RO; and more.
We also met with our RO equipment provider, Veolia, to discuss start-up of the expanded RO
Plant.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

All my best,

D@L

Pete Nardi
General Manager
Hilton Head PSD



i

=
o

= Jou1sig 201088 aljang |

y )931) peo.g

A {

VadaNayayv
3d ‘NVIAMO3G IMIN

YddNddy
N

AdNLS ALIAILDINNOD
JdN1LONA1LSVHINI
TVNOID3Y
asdod




VRINAQEV

"dSdIS 0} puss pue wouy
9Al908al 0] palinbal UOISISAUOD JuelosjuISl] =

"uolsnJiul Jsjemyjes 0} anp sj|am
V4N Buiso| 1ouysip BulioqybiaN “puels)
pesH uoj|iH 0} uoisnJjul Jajemjjes jo 1oedwl| =

(O 2 ) VSMrg pue
(@O 271 = nwi| HwJded [emelpyim) sjjom

V4N @81y} uo Buikjes Ajgjos sl SdDg =

*S@2.1N0sal .._Ou—m>>UC30._@ gmamw_u
9ZI[IIN 0} 4L\ B UMO Jou S80p dSdOd =

SdON3TIVHO

NIDI81BMN Ul WisjsAs uonnquisip
Jajem Bunsixs Jo [opow uopeiqied e ying =

"JOBUUODIB}UI B} BA3IYOE

0} 1S00 pajeWI}Sa pue ainjonJiseljul

palinbal sy pue sjoLysip Bulloqybiau woly
$92INn0s Jajem |enuajod oy} pajeblyseAu] =

saljoeded
I8y} pue JouIsIp 8dIAIes dSdO4d ulyim
$92IN0s Isjem s|ge|jieAe oy} pajebisenu] =

JajuIm pue Jewwns Joj [eob puewsp ayj
18S pue pusi] puewsp J9jem sy} PEMSIASY =

JAILO3rd0 AdNLS




vaRnayv c
AR

1984 —— 9,
002'S 009'Z O WM

Sfat-I[RIan awey |
YN 371 |

@ AGOINOSHO

HS TAS NMYEQ
SZ0Z Y ELVa

ZO'BSE00L  ON Mdd YHHnody

o SRy = — asn Ul s||om Y4NX2ZL

Qﬂﬂh%aﬁlzedl ZO—w:mn_:z_
sl e JILYMLIVS




VRINQIV 14
AN/

S3UN0IID HE| — UOIIDDLL 1DI2IBWIWIOY) -
SJUN0JID | 6 — SSauUIsng D120 - 099 ¥8G 099 099 S/l puewag

snun z1 oz ‘sijunodob Jenuuy
c€ — mswmmwﬂ. |DIU3Y 1Ua1sub.1| |p12I2WIo) -

0€ &7 e gig asw

SJUN0JJD
Sk — QWO 1DIUdY JUBISUD.] 101230 -
spun | £5] A e e G < R e g

’SJUN022b ()| — a4DYSaW1 | /13]0H 1DI2IBUILIOY) -
S31UN 90§ 'SIUN0IID

01 — Juawiindy/aunbay Jpnuapisay - ~ | 20z | €20c-be0z | 6L0Z | 3Un |puewisg
SJUN02Ib )Z6 — OpUO) puewsqg | puewsg —¥Loz
paJajajn/awoH Anuwib4-a)buis jp1iuapisay - |eouojsiy | jesuoysiy | Puewsqg

[ed1103sIH

:uonpofissp)d Aq
SJUN022D 43UI0ISND 3A1ID JO Jaquinu buimojjo)
a1 sbY gSdDd ‘Hodal [p1uULUlS FZ0Z 4od

ANVINEQJ Jd31VM LNIHHND - asdod




"saipuablaws 10} 9qe|ieAe snjdins swos ‘a104a18y}

VRNV
‘paddols aq ued yYsy Jo abieydas a9 90«

S

(o 0°2) (@sno-o(-)) (@on 2°1)
Sd IYOINHSY T1IM ST1AM
VSMrd SV X | vin X €
/ >-. \mmhz_?
asdod
\ ‘ /mm_s_s_:m
(doIn 0°2) (@O L°2) (@aon 2°1)
Sd IYOINHSY REN) ST1AM
VSMrd USY X | vin X €

N/
\Bus_ (t°0)= ) 4 )
ST13M V4N O/M don ¥'L=
ONINIVINIY ST1IM V4N O/M
Hd3LNIM don 8L = TVLOL 43LNIM
. AdNVINEQ
dswn €L = dILNIM
ONINIVIATY doOn L'E =
YILNIM 1VLOL ¥3ILNIM
B |
don L'L =
STIIM V4N O/M don L't =
ONINIVINTY ST1IM V4n O/M
YININNS —— 1VLOL YIWINNS
dON 8°2 = dNVINIQ
ONINIVINIY dINNNS doIN 8'S =
YININNS 1VLOL YININNS
Y, \ J U J

"

ALIDVdVYD 32dN0S H3LVM ONILSIX3 — asSdod



V3Inayv
\//\

9

"9A0(e Pa}si| SOLIBUIIS INC) 10} WI)SAs
9Y3 UIYlIM punoj aiam sjuierisuod dijnespAy op -sisAjeue
Kypeded uo paseq @o 0°L 01 sjusawaiinbai mojy pasinay,

dSdHH 03 mo|4 fousbiswy oA §'L puas

dsdls 03 moj4 fouabiawig @O S°L puss

+dSdIS Woli dDIAl §°L SAISO3Y

*YSMrg Wwoli doIN S°L 9AI903Y

¥ oleuaos

€ olIeuads

Z OlIeuadS

[ OLIeUadS

4 daon (#'0)= )

ST13M v4n O/M
ONINIVINTY
d3LNIM

ddn gL =
ONINIVINTY
d3LNIM

asn 'L =
ST13IM V4N O/mMm
ONINIVINTY
JINIANS

ddn 8¢ =
ONINIVINTY

YININNS
- y,

13dOIN JI'TNVHAAH ® SOI4dVYN3OS () §NO4




VaINaav
4

QUUOlYDSASN ASdIS "eUIWeIo[YD S3sN WSAA(G |
‘pa4inbai uoneuiweloyd _om.::_um._ uolsiaAuod oz uonddjuIsiq
- VSMr4 mﬁ wolj dSN 0°L _mcos__o_om
‘pa4inbau ue Bbunepowwodde Jo a|geded ale
Sd 191500( pue wa)sAs UOISIDAUOD  Sd 2I0WYSY PUe SUI| UOISSIWSULIY BUilsixg [FEilike] k=it

jueldajulsip ‘auljadid 109uuodiazuj tm_uww: m_um._ma: oz /393UuU0dI3juj
‘(L1202 Aq pe1s|dwod aq 03 pejewllsa) puas (5102 EwEmEm< Alddns Ja1epn |
0} Ayoeded ay3 aney Abw QsdIS 1no 1ing  ay1 Jad @O | [euonippe aseydind ued pue
A12191dwod 41 M OY PIOXSM MaU 3yl YUA  ‘@DIN 2 03dn aseyaind ued Ajpuaiind qsddg [ telete e £l
*3|qejiene aq Abjy "VSMrg Yiim wLiijuod o} pasnN d|qejieay

ASdIS Woll OIN 0'L SAI9d9Y _ VSM(g Woly o 0L enieooy IITEREITEEETe

NOILVI3dO TVINHON — Z ANV | OIdVN3IOS




VRINQEV
N/

[ulwelolyd sesn gdSdHH

‘pa4inbal uoisiaAuod oN

"Jodal ay3 ul pajussald

2Je (7 pue €) S21N0J dAleUID]|e OM]
paiinbau sanjen pue siajaw Mmojy yHum
}|neA Ja3aw 33a40u0d e pue ssedAq maN

(2 oueusds Jad gsd|S Wouy
MO[} BUIAIDBI §I 'ADIN 0L PUSS UBD 4SdD9)

"ddIANl §°L 943 puss o}
fpeded ybnous aney jou saop dsddg

dSdHH ©1 dDIN §°L puss

14 O_m<ZmUm

auLIo|YD S9SN ASdIS |
"paainbau si uoneuuoy) juiodyeaig uoI3d3juisiq

‘pa41inbau
Sd 321A19S YBIH pue walsAs uoisianuod
u:ﬁumm:_m_v wc__mn__n_ uuwccov_mu:_

ainjonJjsenu|
/393Uu0dI33u|

i_umnmu :m:o:w w>m.._ uoc saop n_mn_um

n_mn__m ou n__U_>_ 5 r Ucmm

NOILVYIdO ADNIOYHINT — ¥ ANV € OIMVYNIOS



VIINayv

(a®W 0'2) (@sw9o(-)) (@w 1)
Sd TIOWHSY 1M STIM
vsmra uSY X L vinx g
/ ,—, \xmhzzs

—— asddod

\ —v /zms_s_:m

(aoW 0'2) (@W 12 (@ ')
Sd TYOWHSY 1M STHM
vsMmre SV X1 vinxe

aSdHH OL AOW §'L AN3S
¥ OIYYNIDOS

dsdIS OL dSIN S'L dN3S
€ OI4VN3DS

asdIS WOdd dS 0°L JAIFD3Y

Z OIdVN3DS

VSMId NOdd SN 0°L JAIFOTY

L OI4V¥N3DS

6
asw (') asw (o) asn (zo aswn ¢l
asn (6°L) aswn (¥°0) asw (z-o) don ¢l
dsn 90 dsn Le doN €¢ dsn 8¢
dsn oo asSn Le ddSIN €72 ddSn 8¢
asw (r'o) dasin L°L asin €L dsin 8¢
asin g'L dSN 0'e dsn el dsS 0'¢
dsn vl doSn L'y dSIN L'E dsi 8's

ST13M V4N LNOHLIM

SADUNOSIY T1V

DNINIVINZY dSdDg

ANVINIQ AaSdDod

dVD TV1OL dsdod

ALIDVdAVYD 30dN0S ¥31VM ONILSIX3 — dSdod



vanasy ¢dSdHH 01 moji Aousbiswa
N puas 0} ybnous ‘sjjem 4N

1noyum ‘Ayoeded Buluiewal sy sj

"9b.Jeydal YSY ou Yum 3|qejiene ADIA 2’ Lxxxx
'aSdIS wWouj Js3em Buiaiedal 8|iym aSdHH 01 Js1em Aousbiaws Bulpuas IO .y
‘ASdHH 01 J81em Aousbisws BUIpUSs 1S .
meum\Am asdog mc_c_mE_mE b]IETGM n_mn__._I 9 L_m«m\s \AucmemEm Buipuss 101aq,
oLeusag || OLIBU3DG
xxx(6°0) 60 i i f ®? ,, i i i ; k1
.  oueuads || Z OLEUdDS
PaIpoAl P3IpPOIN

D [ —
O 7'e
PauipoN pPaliponl

1 pITE | USY <"5 Hduyag dsvy vin
/snjdins E E VSMIE | Gc4da | asads Jsniding | 153°L asddd | asdog
SbJEYI9Y ySY UORIPUOD 1STUIN

(@av) ‘PaJInb3y asddg vw.:: 94 dsdod
sli=Mm vdn o: + dSdIS Wouy aoin L

STIIM V4N LNOHLIM
NOSV3S ¥3d SISATVYNY ALIDVYdYD




e e

> , 2% ing = S 5610553105 5y ’ a i _ _
" q saung/f 3 0 =53 . IIEER ) - .

—eomd ¢ ST Ema L - o A 4 ZINIVNEEOV
SENCPIENL = i = il cARBrZ -

oy e N " - [ . , == o -

11590531055y o

JUOLJUE3D @ g
¥ w.mcgo,oxwi._‘ma.. -~

23\

T

ulwe,
»

#
-

o

o

-
5,

’

S

R

s1uswalinbay 11wy , =i
s91ewiNs] 150D i PSR euon)iHoH SR Bien, 01
abejuenpy dijnepAH ‘ Ssfey ol N g )
uonesado Jyjomo|q a3ell|ide) 01 Apoq 5k
Ja1em aoepins Jo puod e 01 Aywixoud aso|D) % e ‘ :
sd J91500q pue | o :...‘.\.wsn%._%c% ,
wia1sAs uoloauISIp 40} suswalinbal jenneds | : = 55 a5a gt :
SUOIIDIaPISUO)) -
Z 01iDU33§ paiJipo],J 10 S91N0Y oAIIDUIa]]Y OM]




AHD
HHD

BIE Dy (AR
GNVISTHIN0S
0000 9520
000 7700254

4 1100000200
< ooogroi0zsy

NIVINYILVYMN
HONI-ZL
AINMO dasddd

YNTIONYD HLABS
0 .aTEms 3N
Ciki: SS0MAN ig

.x& UOo3|IH el LG

=i S
onch PA

o171 oS3
SaNAa
OLIFWYd
0000 2000000
~fsto0esd 28 -

[

0000'8520
000 T70 025Y

Amxd Uo3IH WEIIIM Amyd[UO3IH

Amid uoliiH wel I

0T IHH ARIZd0Nd

il 8 |

f(er27 2 S
aLa LSRRI
A0 A TN

0000 YZEE

000 TT0 0ZS8M

1ORILSIA
3DIAY3S 2r18Nd
ANVIST HLNOS
0000 0€00
200 TT0 05Sd

ALd3dodd
AiNMO

| JON3OY

NI HIuf)
ALTNOWKED'E
avaH N

mww m -’

aNOHdTEL

STI@YaH NO.OTH
40.531143d0¥d. [ s

YNIOUYD, VISVOD i
0009 ££00 600

770,054

VT

0000 98€0
000 FF0 0554

NIVINYILYMWN
HDNI-2L
Q3INMO asdis

IDTANIS 2118Nd
ANVAST HLNOS
0000 TEQO

0000 620200

110 sty

=/\(ep) OZQ.H SAEN Sn!n:uwmrm -
0000 95£6 LRt
S3114¥3d0odd

(35}
QBTSN
7QO0-EF0 0554 v‘ N A

= A e Ty diNMmo
dasdis

juel sbelols 191em pajeAs|e PaUMO SdDd

9yl 01 IssO|D

— snoabejuepe AjedineipAy =

"91IS

asdlIS 8y} uo puod aide-| bunsixe ay1 aziun =

¥L0¢ sunf ul pasopd d1 MM

asdlis — Aiiedoid psumo gsdis syi azinn =

asdls Aq pajesado/paumo

buidid ||jom ¥Sy 8n0D) Buo] 01-81] =

L LNOYH INIIVNYILTV

(dSdIS INOYd dSIN 0°L JAIFDTY)

¢ OIdVYN3DS d3idiaoin

Vanayv



V¥
4%

i
a3dvindIy
NOILISINDDY ANV
FHOHS HLNOS 6

.@.\%%www&ﬂ e juel abelols pajens|s sy
— wouy Aeme Jayiin4 - paio .
, T—— } yuin4 - paloney sso| AjjeainelpAy
S v B HDNI-2ZL _
; i "\ ¥ aganmoasdis Buissold puejisp\ palsalo Jeremysalq Bunsixy =
NIVIN¥ILYM et \ j J g SIS
HONI-OL i ‘N esmendany "uoobe| sy}
aINMO asddd V_%ﬁwmw B0 g0\, : 01 MO[} JJoMmo|q abieydsip 03 pasinbal Jiwied =
s, AN 80091602
= oo o : 'Sd 4915009 pue wa1sAs uoidsjuisiq 104 —(aAL(
_ : 210ys Yinos @) paiinbai uomiisinboe pue| =

o g NOLONIWVIT s ‘, dsdIs
§ 1DINNODWAINI SRS ; " Aq pajessdo/paumo buidid |lsm 4N €94 0331 =
HONIZL =
A gﬁﬁ Pl Y ﬁwﬂ%wm C ALNOY INILVNYILTYV
e . L I (dSdIS INOdd DN 0'L JAITDTY)
s ¢ OI4VYN3DS d3ldidoiN

000 STO'0SSH

ST 1HOS3
S3INNA OLI3WIYd
0000 0ST0
€00 910 025y




(3s0) J1uiag ‘ubissq)

3|qesedwod suondo yiog sieal g sieak g 1
3[npayds : c e — =
RN . TR —— . l\m...wuﬂinlq i e ST
9|qesedwod suondo yjog S9A SSA 19MOd 9seyd € . —z —— .u.a.a!n,“.ﬂ m .ﬁ y s arss 7Y
3|qetedwod suondo yiog SOA oN I | ¢ e s :
s|qesedwod suondo yjog SOA SOA
9|qetedwod suondo yjog SOA SaA
(@sdIs y¥m passnosip SIA S3A
9q 0] pasu) 3|qelone) oW | v
F
a|qesedwod suoido yjog SaA SaA o
9|qesedwod suondo yjog SOA oN i w
9|qesedwod suondo yiog SOA SSA
s|qesedwod suoido yjog S9A oN
9|qesedwod suondo yjog SOA SSA

*Buissold g/2 AMH sadinbai

pue s8nss! aul| UOIIEdIUNWWOD 4 009 1 9€0C
1ybipieds aaey Aew | 3y
aseyoingd aAllQ 3Ioys Yinos 6 saA oN -

'S\ UoienoBau gsdis

2 e

e o B PR e . - S Ry

BTy T 2103 m:o L E1C) (O
SOUBIBYIP %/ 000'018'9$  00£'SvE'9 $ .

[4 L
aAneuwIs}|y | sAneulsy|y

SJUBWIWOY)




3NIT NOISSINSNYYL

w9T VIA GSdHH OL VHINayyv
QSdHH 01 aSdJ8 INOY4 A \//\
NOILV¥3dO ADNIDHINI A3S0d0¥d e y
remma sl (12 X1€EL) 1NeA J91oW 913I0U0D) =
T a7 VIA 0Sd08 WOY4
- STEONRY_ 5 S = Y ssedAq pue aAjea uoie|osi
: - = !
“ M M I A MO IONOWINS ‘SA[EA |0JIUOD [EUOIIDBIIP 4S18WMOY)
“ M . _V - _7“.‘.._D<>Om&.._:x_ o Q3s0d0oyd . e LH_\,\/ WMMQ\AD r_UC_IN—‘ >>®Z =
_PI < L_ b — - NOISSINSNYHL 72
.H llllllllllllll — A VIAYSMIE NOYd
= T 5" Sd EoEcm,q ssedAg
| ¥313n0sdde |

== v ALNOY INIIVNYILTY

;,,,A =5
g ¥ OIdVYN3IDS
ON0E
ASdHH 01 dSdJ8 WO¥d - ———
NOILLYY3d0 ADN3IOY¥INI 3SOd0¥d
" vinasa oL (L XYEL) HNeA JsjaW 81810U0) =
54 OWHSY NOISSINSNVYL 7T
| - VIA QSd28 WOY¥3

__ M __ e rﬁ ssedAq pue aAjeA uolye|osi

. 2 b oo _ms;am_ﬁ 5 'SAJBA [0JIUOD |_UOIIDRIIP USIBWMOY)
P ! ———nZe = e yum ssedAg youi-g| meN =

v ~ Jlllﬂqllu = "
| BEREEE ) _._u,MmJ X, szu,wwm_w%ﬁ% Sd ®Jowysy buizijin
[ ) :
| L% (GSdHH OL D &L GNIS)
MO1d ADN3DYINI
s EILNOY INILVNYILTV
C e e
— = ¥ OI4VYN3DS
QZDAW_M_WW._.>Om<

ONO0'E




VainaQyv

9l
44

a9 S’L) AdSdHH oL -

3 3 3 £ puy
0000189 00g‘sye‘9 :
9 $ $ (@D 0°L) asdis wouiy -

¢ 3INoy L 9IN0Y
AARUIBY Y SAIBUI Y

150D pajewsy [e3o )

dSdHH 0} AOIN §'L Bulpuss -  olreusds
dSdIS Woy @O 0'L Buiniedsy — g oleusas payipo

Jo uonpuiquio)

NOILVAN3IININOD3Y




VaINaQav

000°0L89 00E'SPE'9 1503 303loud [ejo) pueio
000'29¢'L 090°'692°L ©%0¢) Bulisauibuz g AousbuRuoy
000°222 oLs‘iiz (%s) uonezmqon
000°L89 0ES'vE9 (%S 1) 3301d pue peayiang
000°0VS't 0oz'oeZ'y 3509 pajewnysy |ejo]
000'002 000'002 (uoesadg Asusbiaum) ASJHH 01 ASdod Usemiaq 30eUuoaiaju] 40} =303 qng
000'00Z 000'002 000'0S€ _ 4 z | 1INBA YIM AD PUB SaAjeA ‘18}8)\ MOl ‘sul-aj Z|
_ a3 it ] Lcins ‘ i __ (Swes oy ate y pue ¢ SanRRUISIY 104 S3S00 341 ) ASIHH O} ASHDE Wo3 Mol ASusbiowss 1o} SerewnsS 1500
& = (uonesadQ Aouebiawz) ASIS PUE ASJDg Usamjaq }38UU0II8jU] 104 [BJ0} NG
- 02 000'00S 0 0 |sued |ojuo0] pue QA Yim aulqing |eoiaA 3omas YbiH 2. sdwnd aomniag
& - 000'002 0 0 Jaxiw ypimyues [aa)s uojieb 0oo'o9 jue| abeioig punoibanoqy)
2L 1 T i A S d g (- v SR R ST E = __uoneunolyg juiodyedtg
000'0v8‘'t 00Z'0eSs‘e (uonesadQ jewloN) asdiS Pue asdog U33M}3q }I3UU0DI3)U| 10} [B30} NS
000's 000'8 000t z z pod sidwes
000'0e 000'0e 000‘'s 9 9 Jd¥0 ‘ainjesadwa] ‘Hd
000'09 000'09 000'0€ (4 F4 JazA|euy BlUOW WY 3314 PUB BJUOW WY [B)0 )
000'09 000'09 000'0e 2 c JazAleuy sulo|YD 934 pUE 3ULOIYD |E}0
waysAs burioyuop Ayreny 133ep
0oo0'oL 000'0L 000°'S k4 (4 30|yo0dAy WNIPoS pue ejuowwe s||inb uonoalu|
000'SL 000'SL 000'SL L L Jaxiw auluy
000'08 000'08 000'08 L L wa}sAs Buipasy aulo|yo pased-mol4
00002 000'0L 000'02 L 3 Adoueo yjim| due} abeio}s ying ajuo|yoodAH wnipog|
000°02L 000'02L 000'02L 3 L sdwnd 18}s00q ‘10jonpa ‘[aued |o4uod Buipnjou; wa}sAs Buipas; seb eluowwe paosed-mol4
waysAs pas jearwayn
000'S 000'S 000°'S L L Japlwsuel] ‘youmg ‘abeg ainssald
000'SL 000'SL 000'sL L L J3juanald mopioeg
000'02 000'02 000'02 L L anjeA Aianng pajenoy JojoN
0oo'gL 000'8L 000'e 9 9 Adg lenuepy
000'8L 000'glL 000'6 z z anleA o8y
000'v 000'% 000'% L L anjep ases|ay Jiy|
000's 000's 000's L I 1z Wbep
saoueusyinddy|
= |aued [ou0D pue wajsks g4
000'00L 000'00L 000'00L L L HaLlLuo0L e wdb gooLie 2 sdwnd |ebnyuad
Sd 43)soog|
000'000'L 000'000°L 000'000°'L L L lojessusn pueyayOS Sapnioul [eaios|g
000'00L 000'00L 000'00L L L Buwned ‘Guipesb ‘Bulies| MIoAN BHS|
000'089L 000091 008 s ooc s 002 uogels Bunojiuo Aljend J8jepn az1s juudiooy - Bulpjing
000'009 000'009 oos s 0s. S 0SL 1B21303|3 ‘swooy [eolway ‘sdwing uogngysiq ‘sdwnd Jaysoog Joj juLidiood azis judyooy - Buip|ing
000'SL 000'SL 000'SL 3 L v3 Alquwassy jueipAH ali4
=~ 000'sve 00s 0 u06v 1834 Jeauln 1I'd 31geMo|4 /M 3}310U0 ade|day g InD
000'0L 000'0L ooo‘ol L L w3 JIBIN BAIBA P 2|OYUEBN /M aA[E/ DSE|SY I ,ZI
000'6 000'6 00S'v 4 k4 v3 Xog 3A|BA/M BAJBA 3D ,Z|
000'€Z 000‘ez 000'ee L L SNOL sbumi4
B 000's0L 00L 0 B 0osL 1894 Jeaul Noermgalog Aq Buise) |981g b2
> 000'09 ooy 0 ¥ 0sL 1334 Je3ul] yoergalog Aq OAd 2L
0oo‘oLe = 008 3 0se (0] j@34 Jeauln AddHAQ OAd .2L
000'SL 002's9S 0oe y0sz yv88'L }934 Jeaurn urep J3lep OAd 2L
- = E 4 009 4 pe0'e () adid yo ybua adid jo yibua| - MZLN
000'000°L = 000'00¢€ L 0 Asyainig O ueug Aq paumo (0000 ¥ELOF00 910 0ZSY) Ia 210US WINOS 6 - Z IV uopisinboy pue
ydom ajis
. Rt 1 3 T o _ 5 L - I e oI (T i __ 0SdOg PuE gsdiS U2aM33q 323UU02133u] o3 SSIEWlsS 3509
3s0J pajewys3z 3s0Q pajewnyszy EEIFEEITS sjun Jo 'oN sjun 4o ‘oN uondiiasap pajiejag way)
< dAjeuldyy L 3anjeulayy 2\ LIV




m
A
@

1911181 391N u__e:_

)9919 peoiq

vddNayv
3d ‘NVINMO3L IMIN

Y dIdNAIY
pa

= UN3 JH1 -




Broad Creek ¥
Public Service District

HiltonHead
™
5) ) PSD
mrane iy
g

February 10, 2026

FROM: Commissions of Hilton
Head, Broad Creek, and South
Island Public Service District,
and Board of Directors of
Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer
Authority

TO: Sen. Tom Davis

Re: H 3768, to extend the current sunset provision for the utility relocation law from July 1, 2026, to July 1,
2031 (Brewer — R, Gatch — R, Robbins — R, Schuessler — R, and Sessions — R)

Dear Senator Davis:

The Commissions of Hilton Head Public Service District, Broad Creek Public Service District, and South Island
Public Service District, and the Board of Directors of Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority, are asking for
your support of H. 3768, which would extend the current sunset provision for the utility relocation law from
July 1, 2026, to July 1, 2031. The House passed the bill 103-0 in 2025. It is currently in Senate Finance
Committee.

The bill will help cover costs imposed on public water and sewer utilities for relocation of public water and/or

sewer lines within DOT’s right-of-way (ROW) when costs are necessitated by a transportation improvement
project. The taxpayers of the PSD service area have had to cover such costs in the past and may face significant
relocation costs in coming years due to U.S. 278 and Hilton Head bridges projects that could impact a
large-scale drinking water transmission pipeline that provides about half of Hilton Head Island’s water supply
and is jointly owned by the Hilton Head PSD and Broad Creek PSD.

The bill will also reduce project delays and keep road projects on track. The provision is the result of many

years of negotiation between SCDOT and public water and sewer utilities including counties, municipalities,
and special purpose districts.

Under the provision, the relocation of public water or sewer lines within the DOT-owned Right of Way (ROW)

are treated much like those outside of the ROW. The drinking water transmission pipeline owned by the PSDs
is an example of critical infrastructure that is jointly owned by both a larger (Hilton Head PSD) and smaller
(Broad Creek PSD) utility. Smaller utilities have all relocation costs paid. Larger utilities have their costs paid up
to a cap of 4% of the total project cost, even if two major utilities are impacted. Each large utility only receive a
pro rata share. The cap is slightly higher (4.5%) if one major and one minor utility is involved, with the smaller
utility, having all of its relocation costs covered first. The larger utility only receives any remaining share. This
lessens the need for small utilities to increase customer rates to pay for these relocation costs, which has often
occurred. Also, this structure gives the transportation improvement project a financial incentive to minimize or



|

l

avoid relocating public water/sewer lines. Last but not least, this approach minimizes project delays and results
in lower overall project costs — a benefit to everyone.

To be eligible for payment of the relocation costs, the public utility must meet the Transportation Improvement

Project’s bid and construction schedule. This involves the public utility very early in the project planning and
design. This provides DOT and the utilities with the best opportunity to minimize/avoid relocation costs

through project design.

We ask that you strongly support this much needed legislation on the Senate floor.

Sincerely,

),

/ ! s
N /‘_ ' ,}t(,tx‘\ I W]
At \‘\ “'

=

VF‘rank Turano
Chair
On Behalf of the Hilton Head PSD Commission

Dean Layton
Vice Chair
On Behalf of the Broad Creek PSD Commission

B A 20

Chair
On Behalf of South Island Public Service District Commission

ywe.ww-

James E. Baker Jr.
Immediate Past Chair
On Behalf of the Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority Board of Directors



Charts, Graphs and WQR




(gaINIm)

(NO

ASV/STIIM — JTNINNS) 09T — ¥1

(STTaM
ON—JdINIM) ITI - 11

(e3uer) ssouprey

souerdwo)) ug

souerdwo)) uy

douerdwo)) uy

souerdwo)) uy

(A1mb) (sqgq) sonpoid-£g uonoayusi(y

V/IN (8a®) yq
I'c (3ae) sunoyp
SSvd [es13ojo11a108g
09 | AON |10 | 1des | Bny | Anr | oung | Kejn | (udy | yorey | "qeq | uer
YIUOJN Aq SINSY 1591 Jo 2dA L
Bunsa AurenQ) Iotep\ 9pIM-WISAS
%0001 L6'YT1 [e10]
000 £1910094 JSY
%011 oVl SIlPM VAN
%068 6011 ueld O
%00 000 paseyaIng
dLA . . . . a : ;
Sddngs g dlLA 99q | "AON |00 | 1des | Sny | Amnf | sung | AegAl | [udy | yorey | "qog | -uer
IUOIA] Jod DN 90IN0g
A1ddng 1o1e M0

1oday Aireng) 1918 A[YIUOIN

9c-uef




6 29 A €5 (paSreyoer) YSV

A ¥8'1 VAN A1e10we)) uoTu()
€92 41 X 75T VAN Jooiqess
61 08 A LET VA0 9SI0H PIIM
161 0L A 6€°C VAN UonniA O So1
i}l €9 A 96'1¥0°C VA UOnE)S oI1 ]

A €8°C 1M OY PaysIUL]

€0T - €01 19% - L¥1 X e/u (e3uer) soM VAN 1o1ep, med O
A 0€C (A1ddns) vsmrd
() D oy | sy |, TP
33vIoAY UIYIAA ’

YIUOJA SIY ], 10J sagury Ayijen() 1A d1j109ds-Ajddng




SIS 93p1Ied PaSuey) - 9707/¥1/1
JIUOJA STY T, I0J S10N Ajfen() 1dje A 1910

(444 [e10L

K ot Suonoadsu] 29 SANSSI IOMIS

K 57l SNOSUB[[SISTIA

K S I0[0D/1SB ] /I0PO)

L ¢ 93enQ 1918 M\

L 3 [B9[/3Balq (OSd

K L1 Jea/Aea1q Jowo3isn))

K 9 QINSSAIJ MO
SJUSWWO)) (POAJOSDY saumbuy jo JequnN Armbuy jo od£ 7,

saLnbuy 1owolsn)




